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AUTHENTICITY 

There is only one 

Moncler, it's unique 

and we work tirelessly 

to protect its difference 

EXCELLENCE 

Quality is at the heart 

of everything we do 

AMBITION 

Moncler never stops 

innovating and seeking 

to set new standards 

COMMITMENT TO 

PEOPLE 

People are Moncler's 

greatest asset: their 

future is Moncler's 

future, we are 

committed to their 

development 

RESPONSIBILITY 

Long-term growth can 

only be driven by 

respect and 

responsible behaviour 
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MONCLER GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 

Consolidated income statement

(Euro/000) Notes 2016

of which 

related parties 

(note 10.1)

2015

of which 

related parties 

(note 10.1)

Revenue 4.1 1,040,311 590 880,393 413

Cost of sales 4.2 (252,303) (7,910) (225,495) (8,932)

Gross margin 788,008 654,898

Selling expenses 4.3 (312,353) (954) (253,448) (1,085)

General and administrative expenses 4.4 (94,093) (7,355) (79,535) (6,501)

Advertising and promotion expenses 4.5 (68,143) (57,847)

Non recurring income/(expenses) 4.6 (15,738) (7,380) (11,389) (3,059)

Operating result 4.7 297,681 252,679

Financial income 4.8 492 4,267

Financial expenses 4.8 (5,084) (5,975)

Income before taxes 293,089 250,971

Income taxes 4.9 (96,767) (83,061)

Net Income, including Minority 196,322 167,910

Non-controlling interests (279) (47)

Net income, Group share 196,043 167,863

Earnings per share (unit of Euro) 5.16 0.79 0.67

Diluited earnings per share (unit of Euro) 5.16 0.78 0.67  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(Euro/000) Notes 2016 2015

Net profit (loss) for the period 196,322 167,910

Gains/(Losses) on fair value of hedge derivatives 5.16 154 801

Gains/(Losses) on exchange differences on 

translating foreign operations
5.16

1,693 4,219

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or 

loss 1,847 5,020

Other Gains/(Losses) 5.16 (309) 134

Items that will never be reclassified to profit or 

loss (309) 134

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax
1,538 5,154

Total Comprehensive income/(loss) 197,860 173,064

Attributable to:

Group 197,580 173,016

Non controlling interests 280 48  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

Consolidated statement of financial position

(Euro/000) Notes
December 31, 

2016

of which 

related parties 

(note 10.1)

December 31, 

2015

of which 

related parties 

(note 10.1)

Brands and other intangible assets - net 5.1 266,882 268,014

Goodwill 5.1 155,582 155,582

Property, plant and equipment - net 5.3 123,925 102,234

Other non-current assets 5.9 24,691 22,676

Deferred tax assets 5.4 74,682 65,970

Non-current assets 645,762 614,476

Inventories and work in progress 5.5 135,849 134,063

Trade account receivables 5.6 104,864 7,523 89,782 7,013

Income taxes 5.12 5,560 4,155

Other current assets 5.9 13,356 20,985

Financial current assets 5.8 3,019 0

Cash and cash equivalent 5.7 243,389 148,603

Current assets 506,037 397,588

Total assets 1,151,799 1,012,064

Share capital 5.16 50,043 50,025

Share premium reserve 5.16 109,187 108,284

Other reserves 5.16 348,179 219,986

Net result, Group share 5.16 196,043 167,863

Equity, Group share 703,452 546,158

Non controlling interests 119 649

Equity 703,571 546,807

Long-term borrowings 5.15 75,835 127,016

Provisions non-current 5.13 11,880 5,688

Pension funds and agents leaving indemnities 5.14 5,258 4,604

Deferred tax liabilities 5.4 70,953 68,753

Other non-current liabilities 5.11 12,043 6,222

Non-current liabilities 175,969 212,283

Short-term borrowings 5.15 64,777 71,182

Trade account payables 5.10 132,586 8,131 112,969 8,445

Income taxes 5.12 24,577 36,613

Other current liabilities 5.11 50,319 3,788 32,210 2,696

Current liabilities 272,259 252,974

Total liabilities and equity 1,151,799 1,012,064  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

(Euro/000) Notes

Group shareholders' equity at January 1, 

2015
5.16 50,000 107,040 10,000 (637) (975) 4,522 1,242 117,973 130,338 419,503 1,071 420,574

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 130,338 (130,338) 0 0 0

Changes in consolidation area 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (30,014) 0 (30,014) (470) (30,484)

Share capital increase 25 1,244 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,269 0 1,269

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 0 0 6,607 (1,242) (22,981) 0 (17,616) 0 (17,616)

Other changes of comprehensive income 0 0 0 4,218 935 0 0 0 0 5,153 1 5,154

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 167,863 167,863 47 167,910

Group shareholders' equity at December 31, 

2015
5.16 50,025 108,284 10,000 3,581 (40) 11,129 0 195,316 167,863 546,158 649 546,807

Group shareholders' equity at January 1, 

2016
5.16 50,025 108,284 10,000 3,581 (40) 11,129 0 195,316 167,863 546,158 649 546,807

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 300 0 0 0 0 167,563 (167,863) 0 0 0

Changes in consolidation area 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (289) (289)

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (34,883) 0 (34,883) (521) (35,404)

Share capital increase 18 903 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 921 0 921

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 0 0 15,530 0 (21,854) 0 (6,324) 0 (6,324)

Other changes of comprehensive income 0 0 0 1,692 (155) 0 0 0 0 1,537 1 1,538

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 196,043 196,043 279 196,322

Group shareholders' equity at December 31, 

2016
5.16 50,043 109,187 10,300 5,273 (195) 26,659 0 306,142 196,043 703,452 119 703,571

Equity, non 

controlling 

interest

Total 

consolidated 

Net Equity

Other reserves

Retained 

earnings

Equity, Group 

share

Result of the 

period, Group 

share
IFRS 2 

reserve

FTA 

reserve

Share capital
Share 

premium
Legal reserve

Other comprehensive 

income

Cumulative 

translation 

adj. reserve

Other OCI 

items
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Consolidated statement of cash flows Year 2016

of which 

related 

parties

Year 2015

of which 

related 

parties

(Euro/000)

Cash flow from operating activities

Consolidated result 196,322 167,910

Depreciation and amortization 41,635 35,959

Net financial (income)/expenses 4,592 1,708

Other non cash (income)/expenses 15,530 6,607

Income tax expenses 96,767 83,061

Changes in inventories - (Increase)/Decrease (1,188) (14,859)

Changes in trade receivables - (Increase)/Decrease (14,877) (510) 10,596 (5,883)

Changes in trade payables - Increase/(Decrease) 17,892 (415) (2,931) 1,282

Changes in other current assets/liabilities 26,991 1,092 11,778 800

Cash flow generated/(absorbed) from operating activities 383,664 299,829

Interest and other bank charges paid (1,854) (4,108)

Interest received 448 284

Income tax paid (107,917) (114,432)

Changes in other non-current assets/liabilities 3,110 314

Net cash flow from operating activities (a) 277,451 181,887

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets (63,301) (67,657)

Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible fixed assets 1,011 1,470

Net cash flow from investing activities (b) (62,290) (66,187)

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings (68,592) (69,653)

Proceeds from borrowings 0 37,781

Short term borrowings variation (3) (29,365)

Dividends paid to shareholders (34,883) (30,014)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (521) (470)

Share capital increase 921 1,269

Treasury Shares variation (12,801) 0

Other changes in Net Equity (1,901) 2,223

Net cash flow from financing activities (c) (117,780) (88,229)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a)+(b)+(c) 97,381 27,471

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 146,081 122,400

 Effect of exchange rate changes (77) (3,790)

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 97,381 27,471

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 243,385 146,081  

 

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Moncler S.p.A. 

 

The Chairman  

Remo Ruffini 
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE GROUP 

 

1.1. The Group and its core business 

The parent company Moncler S.p.A. is a company established and domiciled in Italy, with its 

registered office located at Via Stendhal 47 Milan, Italy, and registration number of 

04642290961. 

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016 include 

the parent company and its subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as the "Group").  

To date, the Group's core businesses are the creation, production and distribution of clothing 

for men, women and children, shoes, leather goods and other accessories under the Moncler 

brand name. 

 

1.2. Basis for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements 

1.2.1. Relevant accounting principles 

The 2016 consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") issued by the International Accounting 

Standards Board ("IASB") and endorsed by the European Union. IFRS also includes all 

International Accounting Standards ("IAS") and interpretations of the International Financial 

Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC"), previously known as the Standing 

Interpretations Committee ("SIC"). 

The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated income statement, the 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of financial 

position, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash 

flows and the explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

 

1.2.2. Presentation of the financial statements 

The Group presents its consolidated income statement by destination, the method that is 

considered most representative for the business at hand. This method is in fact consistent with 

the internal reporting and management of the business.  

With reference to the consolidated statement of financial position, a basis of presentation has 

been chosen which makes a distinction between current and non-current assets and liabilities, in 

accordance with the provisions of paragraph 60 and thereafter of IAS 1. 

The consolidated statement of cash flows is prepared under the indirect method. 
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In accordance with the provisions of IAS 24, related-party transactions with the Group and 

their impact, if significant, on the consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated 

income statement and consolidated statement of cash flows are reported below. 

 

1.2.3. Basis for measurement 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for 

the measurement of certain financial instruments (i.e. derivatives measured at fair value in 

accordance with IAS 39) and on a going concern basis. 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro thousand, which is the functional 

currency of the markets where the Group mainly operates. 

 

1.2.4. Use of estimates 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the related explanatory notes in 

conformity with IFRS requires that management make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 

at the reporting date. The estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience 

and other relevant factors. The actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates 

and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically and any variations are reflected in the 

consolidated income statement in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 

affects only that period or even in subsequent periods if the revision affects both current and 

future periods. 

In the event that management’s estimate and judgment had a significant impact on the amounts 

recognized in the consolidated financial statements or in case that there is a risk of future 

adjustments on the amounts recognized for assets and liabilities in the period immediately after 

the reporting date, the following notes will include the relevant information.  

The estimates pertain mainly to the following captions of the consolidated financial statements: 

• impairment of non-current assets and goodwill; 

• impairment of trade receivables (bad debt provision); 

• impairment of inventories (obsolescence provision); 

• recoverability of deferred tax assets; 

• provision for losses and contingent liabilities. 

 

Impairment of non-current assets and goodwill 

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets with indefinite 

useful life and goodwill, investments and other financial assets. 
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Management periodically reviews non-current assets for impairment if events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When a review for 

impairment is conducted, the recoverable amount is estimated based on the present value of 

future cash flows expect to derive from the asset or from the sale of the asset itself, at a suitable 

discount rate. 

When the recoverable amount of a non-current asset is less than its carrying amount, an 

impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss and the carrying amount is reduced 

to its recoverable amount determined based on value-in-use calculation or its sale’s value in an 

arm’s-length transaction, with reference to the most recent Group business plan. 

 

Impairment of trade receivables 

The bad debt provision represents management’s best estimate of the probable loss for 

unrecoverable trade receivables. A provision for impairment is determined based on probable 

losses arising from doubtful debt taking into consideration the original credit terms, the 

economic environment and the company’s historical trend together with the monitoring controls 

in place. 

 

Impairment of inventory 

The Group manufactures and sells mainly clothing goods that are subject to changing consumer 

needs and fashion trends. As a result, it is necessary to consider the recoverability of the cost of 

inventories and the related required provision. Inventory impairment represents management’s 

best estimate for losses arising from the sales of aged products, taking into consideration their 

saleability through the Group’s distribution channels. 

 

Recoverability of deferred tax assets 

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Judgment is required in 

determining the provision for income taxes in each territory. The Group recognizes deferred tax 

assets when it is expected that they will be realised within a period that is consistent with 

management estimates and business plans. 

 

Provision for losses and contingent liabilities 

The Group could be subject to legal and tax litigations arising in the countries where it operates. 

Litigation is inevitably subject to risk and uncertainties surrounding the events and 

circumstances associated with the claims and associated with local legislation and jurisdiction. 

In the normal course of business, management requests advice from the Group legal consultants 

and tax experts. The recognition of a provision is based on management’s best estimate when an 

outflow of resources is probable to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably 

estimated. In those circumstances where the outflow of resources is possible or the amount of 
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the obligation cannot be reliably measured, the contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes to 

consolidated financial statements. 

 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES USED IN THE 

PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The accounting principles set out below have been applied consistently for fiscal year 2016 and 

the prior year. 

 

2.1. Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise those of the Parent Company and its 

subsidiaries, of which the Parent owns, directly or indirectly, a majority of the voting rights and 

over which it exercises control, or from which it is able to benefit by virtue of its power to 

govern the subsidiaries’ financial and operating policies. 

The financial results of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent 

company, using consistent accounting policies. 

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and 

cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. Where 

the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the consolidated financial statements include the results 

for the portion of the reporting period during which the parent company had control. In the 

consolidated financial statements, non-controlling interests are presented separately within 

equity and in the statement of income. Changes in the parent’s ownership interest, that do not 

result in a loss of control or changes that represent acquisition of non-controlling interests after 

the control has been obtained, are accounted for as changes in equity.  

In preparing the consolidated financial statements the effects, the balances as well as the 

unrealized profit or loss recognized in assets resulting from intra-group transactions are fully 

eliminated. 

 

Investments in associates 

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method whereas the initial 

recognition is stated at acquisition cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change 

in the investor’s share of net assets. On acquisition of the investment any difference between the 

cost of the investment and the investor’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s assets and 

liabilities is included in the carrying amount of the investment. If the investor’s share of losses of 

the associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the investor’s interest is reduced to 

zero and additional losses are provided for and a liability is recognized to the extent that the 

investor has incurred a legal obligation or has the intention to make payments on behalf of the 

associate. 
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2.2. Foreign currency 

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the 

currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional 

currency). 

Transactions in foreign currencies 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying the spot exchange rate at the date of the 

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are held at 

year-end, are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at the reporting 

date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement on the translation of monetary transactions 

at a rate different from those at which they were translated at initial recognition are recognized 

in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they arise. 

Translation of the results of overseas businesses 

Assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements 

are translated into the Group’s reporting currency of Euros at the exchange rate ruling at the 

reporting date. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the 

reporting period, as it is considered to approximate at best the actual exchange rate at the 

transaction date. Differences arising on the adoption of this method are recognized separately in 

other comprehensive income and are presented in a separate component of equity as translation 

reserve until disposal of the foreign operation. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on 

the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation 

and translated at the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. 

The main exchange rates used to convert into Euro the consolidated financial statements of 

foreign subsidiaries as at and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 

are as follows: 

2016 2015

As at 31 

December 2016

As at 31 

December 2015

AED 4.063440 4.073340 3.869601 3.996618

AUD 1.464320 n/a 1.459600 n/a

BRL 3.856140 3.700440 3.430500 4.311700

CAD 1.465900 1.418560 1.418800 1.511600

CHF 1.090160 1.067860 1.073900 1.083500

CNY 7.352220 6.973330 7.320200 7.060800

CZK 27.034300 27.279200 27.021000 27.023000

DKK 7.445190 7.458700 7.434400 7.462600

GBP 0.819483 0.725850 0.856180 0.733950

HKD 8.592190 8.601410 8.175100 8.437600

HUF 311.438000 309.996000 309.830000 315.980000

JPY 120.197000 134.314000 123.400000 131.070000

KRW 1,284.180000 1,256.540000 1,269.360000 1,280.780000

MOP 8.851500 8.859870 8.420120 8.691862

PLN 4.363200 4.184120 4.410300 4.263900

RON 4.490430 4.448760 4.539000 4.524000

RUB 74.144600 68.072000 64.300000 80.673600

SGD 1.527540 1.525490 1.523400 1.541700

TRY 3.343250 3.025460 3.707200 3.176500

TWD 35.689200 35.250100 33.999500 35.790800

USD 1.106900 1.109510 1.054100 1.088700

Average rate Rate at the end of the period
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2.3. Business combinations 

Business combinations are accounted under the acquisition method. 

Under this method, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are measured 

initially at their acquisition-date fair values. The costs incurred in a business combination are 

accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the services are rendered. 

Goodwill is determined as the excess of the aggregate of the considerations transferred, of any 

non-controlling interests and, in a business combination achieved in stages, the fair value of 

previously held equity interest in the acquiree compared to the net amounts of fair value of 

assets transferred and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. If the fair value of the net 

assets acquired is greater than the acquisition cost, the difference is recognized directly in the 

statement of income at the acquisition date. Non-controlling interests could be measured either 

at their fair value at the acquisition date or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share 

of the identifiable net assets. The election of either method is done for each single business 

combination. 

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting 

period in which the combination occurred, the Group shall report in the financial statements 

provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. During the 

measurement period, that shall not exceed one year from the acquisition date, the provisional 

amounts are retrospectively adjusted to reflect new information obtained about facts and 

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date and, if known, would have affected the 

measurement of assets and liabilities recognized at that date. 

 

2.4. Non-current assets available for sale and discontinued operations 

Non-current assets available for sale and discontinued operations are classified as available for 

sale when their values are recoverable mainly through a probable sale transaction. In such 

conditions, they are valued at the lower of their carrying value or fair value, net of cost to sell if 

their value is mainly recoverable through a sale transaction instead of continued use. 

Discontinued operations are operations that: 

• include a separate line of business or a different geographical area; 

• are part of a single coordinated plan for the disposal of a separate major line of business 

or geographical area of activity; 

• consist of subsidiaries acquired exclusively for the purpose of being sold. 

In the consolidated income statement, non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups that 

meet the requirements of IFRS 5 to be defined as "discontinued operations", are presented in a 

single caption that includes both gains and losses, as well as losses or gains on disposal and the 

related tax effect. The comparative period is subsequently restated in accordance with IFRS 5. 
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As far as the financial position is concerned, non-current assets held for sale and disposal 

groups that meet the requirements of IFRS 5 are reclassified as current assets and liabilities in 

the period in which such requirements arise. The comparative financial statements are not 

restated or reclassified. 

 

2.5. Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition or manufacturing cost, not revalued net 

of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses ("impairment"). Cost includes original 

purchase price and all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition 

for its intended use. 

 

Depreciation 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated and recognized in the consolidated 

income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as reported in the 

following table: 

Category Depreciation period

Land No depreciation

Buildings From 25 to 33 years

Plant and equipment From 8 to 12 years

Fixtures and fittings From 5 to 10 years

Electronic machinery and equipment From 3 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements Lower between lease period and useful life of improvements

Other fixed assets Depending on market conditions generally within the expected utility to the entity  
 

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is 

reasonably certain that the Group will take ownership of the asset by the end of the lease term.  

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reporting period and 

adjusted if appropriate. 

 

Gain/losses on the disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Gains and losses on the disposal of property, plant and equipment represent the difference 

between the net proceeds and net book value at the date of sale. Disposals are accounted for 

when the relevant transaction becomes unconditional. 

 

2.6. Intangible assets 

Goodwill 

Goodwill arising from business combination is initially recognized at the acquisition date as 

described in the notes related to “Business combinations”. 
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Goodwill is included within intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, and therefore, is not 

amortized but subject to impairment test performed annually or more frequently if events or 

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. After the 

initial recognition, goodwill is measured at acquisition cost less accumulated impairment. 

As part of the IFRS first time adoption, the Group chose not to apply IFRS 3 “Business 

Combinations” retrospectively regarding acquisitions made prior to the transition date (January 

1, 2009); consequently, goodwill resulting from acquisitions prior to the transition date to IFRS 

is still recorded under Italian GAAP, prior to any eventual impairment. 

For further details please refer to note 2.7 "Impairment of non-financial assets." 

 

Brands 

Separately acquired brands are shown at historical cost. Brands acquired in a business 

combination are recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. 

Brands have a indefinite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment. Brands 

are not amortized but subject to impairment test performed annually or more frequently if 

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

For further details please refer to note 2.7 "Impairment of non-financial assets." 

 

Intangible assets other than goodwill and brands 

License rights are capitalized as intangible asset and amortized on a straight-line basis over 

their useful economic life. The useful economic life of license rights is determined on a case-by-

case basis, in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreement. 

Key money are capitalized in connection with the opening of new directly operated shop 

(“DOS”) based on the amount paid. Key money in general have a definite useful life which is 

generally in line with the lease period. However, in certain circumstances, Key money have an 

indefinite useful life on the basis of legal protection or common practice that can be found in 

jurisdictions or markets that state that a refund could be received at the end of the lease period. 

In these limited cases, that need to be adequately supported, Key money are not amortized but 

subject to impairment test at least annually in accordance with what set out in the note related 

to impairment of non-financial assets. 

Software (including licenses and separately identifiable external development costs) is 

capitalized as intangible assets at purchase price, plus any directly attributable cost of preparing 

that asset for its intended use. Software and other intangible assets that are acquired by the 

Group and have definite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and 

accumulated impairment losses. 
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Amortization of intangible assets with a definite useful file 

Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over their 

estimated useful lives as described in the following table: 

Category Depreciation period

License rights Based on market conditions within the licence period or legal limits to use the assets

Key money Based on market conditions generally within the lease period

Software From 3 to 5 years

Other intangible assets Based on market conditions generally within the period of control over the asset  

 

2.7. Impairment of non-financial assets 

On an annual basis, the Group tests for impairment property, plant and equipment and 

intangible assets with an definite useful life. Whenever events or changes in circumstance 

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, an impairment loss is recognized for 

the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  

Goodwill and assets with an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested 

annually or more frequently for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstance 

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

When the recoverable amount for individual asset cannot be reliably estimated, the Group 

determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. The 

recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. The 

Group determines the value in use as the present value of future cash flows expected to be 

derived from the asset or from the cash-generating unit, gross of tax effects, by applying an 

appropriate discount rate that reflects market time value of money and the risks inherent to the 

asset. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds 

its recoverable amount. 

With the exception of impairment losses recognized on goodwill, when the circumstances that 

led to the loss no longer exist, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 

amount and cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had there 

been no loss in value. The reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the 

consolidated income statement. 

 

2.8. Leased assets 

Financial lease 

Leases for which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 

classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at the amount 

equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting 

policy applicable to that asset. 
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Operating lease 

Assets under a lease contracts (i.e. rent agreements) other than finance leases are not recognized 

in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. The Group lessees property and 

gross rent expenses related to these operating leases are recognized on a straight line basis over 

the period of the leases. Certain rental expenses are determined on the basis of revenue achieved 

in specific retail locations and are accrued for on that basis. 

 

2.9. Inventory 

Raw materials and work in progress are valued at the lower of purchase or manufacturing cost 

calculated using the weighted average cost method and net realizable value. The weighted 

average cost includes directly attributable expenditures for raw material inventories and labour 

cost and an appropriate portion of production overhead based on normal operating capacity.  

Provisions are recorded to reduce cost to net realizable value taking into consideration the age 

and condition of inventory, the likelihood to use raw materials in the production cycle as well as 

the saleability of finished products through the Group’s distribution channels (outlet and stock). 

 

2.10. Financial instruments 

Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value when the entity becomes a party to a 

contractual obligation of the financial instruments.  

The Group’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts 

receivable, accounts payable, other current and non-current assets and liabilities, investments, 

borrowings and derivative financial instruments. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term deposits held with banks and most 

liquid assets that are readily convertible into cash and that have insignificant risk of change in 

value. Bank overdrafts are recorded under current liabilities on the Group’s consolidated 

statement of financial position. 

 

Financial assets, trade receivables and other current and non-current receivables 

Trade and other receivables generated when the Group provides money, goods or services 

directly to a third party are classified as current assets, except for items with maturity dates 

greater than twelve months after the reporting date.  

Current and non-current financial assets, other current and non-current assets, trade 

receivables, excluding derivatives, with fixed maturity or determinable payment terms, are 

recognized at amortized cost calculated using the effective interest method. Notes receivable 
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(due date greater than a year) with interest rate below that of the market rate are valued using 

the current market rate. 

At the end of each reporting period the Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence 

that the financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists, an 

impairment loss is recognized immediately in the current period consolidated income statement. 

 

Financial liabilities, trade payables and other current and non-current payables 

Trade and other payables arise when the Group acquires money, goods or services directly from 

a supplier. They are included within current liabilities, except for items with maturity dates 

greater than twelve months after the reporting date. 

Financial liabilities, excluding derivatives, are recognized initially at fair value which represents 

the amount at which the asset was bought in a current transaction between willing parties, and 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Financial liabilities 

that are designated as hedged items are subject to the hedge accounting requirements. 

 

Derivatives instruments 

In accordance with IAS 39, derivative instruments qualify for hedge accounting only if at the 

inception there is a formal designation and documentation of the hedging relationship, the 

hedge is expected to be highly effective and the effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably 

measured throughout the financial reporting periods for which the hedge was designated. 

 

Fair value hedge 

A derivative instrument is designated as fair value hedge when it hedges the exposure to changes 

in fair value of a recognized asset or liability, that is attributable to a particular risk and could 

affect profit or loss. The gain or loss on the hedged item, attributable to the hedged risk, adjusts 

the carrying amount of the hedged item and is recognized in the consolidated income statement. 

 

Cash flow hedge 

A derivative instrument is designated as cash flow hedge when it hedges the exposure to 

variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized 

asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect profit or loss. The 

portion of gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is 

recognized in equity within other comprehensive income. The cumulative gain or loss is 

reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period in which the asset acquired or 

liability assumed affects profit or loss. Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is not an 

effective hedge is recognized immediately in the consolidated income statement.  In the event 

that the hedge expires or is terminated or no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting but 

the forecast transaction has not yet occurred, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other 



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MONCLER – ANNUAL REPORT AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 75  

comprehensive income from the period when the hedge was effective remains separately in 

equity and is recognised in the consolidated income statement in the same period during which 

the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.  

 

When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss 

recognised in other comprehensive income from the period when the hedge was effective is 

reclassified immediately in the income statement. 

 

2.11. Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits, such as wages, salaries, social security contributions, paid leave 

and annual leave due within twelve months of the consolidated statement of financial position 

date and all other fringe benefits are recognised in the year in which the service is rendered by 

the employee.  

Benefits granted to employees which are payable on or after the termination of employment 

through defined benefit and contribution plans are recognised over the vesting period. 

 

Defined benefit schemes 

Defined benefit schemes are retirement plans determined based on employees’ remuneration 

and years of service. 

The Group obligation to contribute to employees’ benefit plans and the related current service 

cost is determined by using an actuarial valuation defined as the projected unit credit method. 

The cumulative net amount of all actuarial gains and losses are recognised in equity within 

other comprehensive income. 

The amount recognised as a liability under the defined benefit plans is the present value of the 

related obligation, taking into consideration expenses to be recognised in future periods for 

employee service in prior periods. 

 

Defined contribution schemes 

Contribution made to a defined contribution plan is recognised as an expense in the income 

statement in the period in which the employees render the related service.  

Up to December 31, 2006 Italian employees were eligible to defined benefit schemes referred as 

post-employment benefit (“TFR”). With the act n. 296 as of December 27, 2006 and 

subsequent decrees (“Pension Reform”) issued in early 2007, the rules and the treatment of 

TFR scheme were changed. Starting from contribution vested on or after January 1, 2007 and 

not yet paid at the reporting date, referring to entities with more than 50 employees, Italian 

post-employment benefits is recognised as a defined contribution plan. The contribution vested 
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up to December 31, 2006 is still recognised as a defined benefit plan and accounted for using 

actuarial assumptions. 

 

2.12. Provision for risks and charges 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be 

required to settle the obligation and where the amount of the obligation can be reliably 

estimated. 

Restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has a detailed formal restructuring plan 

and the plan has been implemented or the restructuring plan has been publicly announced. 

Identifiable future operating losses up to the date of a restructuring are not included in the 

provision. 

Changes in estimates are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they occur. 

 

2.13. Share-based payments 

The fair value at grant date of the incentives granted to employees in the form of share-based 

payments that are equity settled is usually included in expenses, with a matching increase in 

equity, over the period during which the employees obtain the incentives rights. The amount 

recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of incentives for which the 

continued service conditions are met and the achievement of non-market conditions, so that the 

final amount recognized as an expense is based on the number of incentives that fulfil these 

conditions at the vesting date. In case the incentives granted as share-based payments whose 

conditions are not to be considered to maturity, the fair value at the grant date of the share-

based payment is measured to reflect such conditions. With reference to the non-vesting 

conditions, any differences between amounts at the grant date and the actual amounts will not 

have any impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

The fair value of the amount payable to employees related to share appreciation rights, settled 

in cash, is recognized as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities over the period 

during which the employees unconditionally become entitled to receive the payment. The 

liability is measured at year-end and the settlement date based on the fair value of the share 

appreciation rights. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognized in profit or loss 

for the year. 
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2.14. Revenue recognition 

Revenues are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 

transactions will flow to the Group and the amount can be reliably measured. Revenue, which is 

stated excluding value added tax and other sales related taxes, is the amount receivable for 

goods supplied less returns, trade discounts and allowances.  

Wholesale sales are recognised when goods are dispatched to trade customers, reflecting the 

transfer of risks and rewards. The provision for returns and discounts is estimated and 

accounted for based on future expectation, taking into consideration historical return trends. 

Retail sales are recognised at the date of transactions with final customers. 

Royalties received from licensee are accrued as earned on the basis of the terms of the relevant 

royalty agreement which is typically based on sales volumes. 

 

2.15. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are recognized on an accrual basis taking into consideration interest accrued on 

the net carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities using the effective interest rate 

method. 

 

2.16. Taxation 

Tax expense recognised in the consolidated income statement represents the aggregate amount 

related to current tax and deferred tax.  

Current taxes are determined in accordance with enforced rules established by local tax 

authorities. Current taxes are recognised in the consolidated income statement for the period, 

except to the extent that the tax arises from transactions or events which are recognised directly 

either in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based on temporary taxable or deductible 

differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in 

the Group consolidated financial statements. Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

offset when income taxes are levied by the same tax authority and when there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the amounts. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined using tax rates that have been enacted by the 

reporting date and are expected to be enforced when the related deferred income tax asset is 

realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not 

discounted. 

Deferred tax assets recognised on tax losses and on deductible differences are recognised to the 

extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the 

temporary differences can be utilised. 
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2.17. Earnings per share 

The Group presents the basic and diluted earnings per share. The basic earnings per share is 

calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to holders of the Company shares by the 

weighted average of the number of shares for the financial year (defined as equal to the share 

capital), adjusted to consider any treasury shares held. The diluted earnings per share is 

calculated by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to shareholders, and the weighted average 

of the number of company shares as defined above, to consider the effects of all potential shares 

with a dilution effect. 

 

2.18. Segment information 

For purposes of IFRS 8 “Operating segments,” the Group’s business is conducted as a single 

operating segment known as the Moncler business. 

 

2.19. Fair value 

IFRS 13 is the only point of reference for the fair value measurement and related disclosures 

when such an assessment is required or permitted by other standards. Specifically, the principle 

defines fair value as the consideration received for the sale of an asset or the amount paid to 

settle a liability in a regular transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

In addition, the new standard replaces and provides for additional disclosures required in 

relation to fair value measurements by other accounting standards, including IFRS 7. 

IFRS 13 establishes a hierarchy that classifies within different levels the inputs used in the 

valuation techniques necessary to measure fair value. The levels, presented in a hierarchical 

order, are as follows: 

• level 1: Fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities; 

• level 2: it Fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within 

Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); 

• level 3: Fair values measured using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 

observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs). 
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2.20. Accounting standards and recently published interpretations 

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations effective from January 1, 2016 

Improvements to IFRS (2010-2012 cycle) 

This document introduces amendments to IFRS 2 – Share-based Payment (new definitions of a 

vesting condition and a market condition and additional definitions of a performance condition 

and a service condition), IFRS 3 – Business Combinations (clarifications of certain aspects 

regarding the classification and measurement of contingent consideration, with the resulting 

amendments to IAS 39 and IAS 37), IFRS 8 – Operating Segments (new disclosure 

requirements are introduced for segment aggregation and clarifications are provided on the 

reconciliation of total segment assets), IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement (clarifications on 

short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates), IAS 16 – Property, Plant and 

Equipment and IAS 38 – Intangible Assets (a clarification that if the revaluation model is used, 

adjustments to accumulated depreciation or amortisation are not always proportional to the 

adjustment of the gross carrying amount) and IAS 24 – Related Party Disclosures (clarifications 

on management entities and the relevant disclosures required). 

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (amendments to IAS 19) 

The aim of this amendment to IAS 19 is to enable entities to simplify their accounting for 
defined benefit plans if the contributions made by employees or third parties satisfy specific 
requirements. 

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations (amendments to IFRS 11) 

In May 2014, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 11 - Joint arrangements: Accounting for 
acquisitions of interests in joint operations which clarifies the accounting for acquisitions of an 
interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business. 

Agriculture: bearer plants (amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41) 

This amendment introduces the possibility of accounting for bearer plants under IAS 16 rather 
than under IAS 41. 

Clarification on acceptable methods of depreciation (amendments to IAS 16 and to IAS 38) 

In May 2014, the IASB issued an amendment to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment and to 

IAS 38 – Intangible Assets. The IASB has clarified that the use of revenue-based methods to 

calculate the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated by an 

activity that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the consumption of 

the economic benefits embodied in the asset. 

The IASB also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to be an inappropriate basis for 
measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible asset. This 
presumption, however, can be rebutted in certain limited circumstances. 
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Improvements to IFRS (2012-2014 cycle) 

In September 2014 the IASB issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle, a 

series of amendments to IFRSs in response to issues raised mainly on IFRS 5 - Non-current 

assets held for sale and discontinued operations, on the changes of method of disposal, on IFRS 

7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures on the servicing contracts, on the IAS 19 - Employee 

Benefits, on the discount rate determination. 

Disclosure initiative (amendments to IAS 1) 

In December 2014 the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements 

as part of its major initiative to improve presentation and disclosure in financial reports. The 

amendments make clear that materiality applies to the whole of financial statements and that 

the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of financial disclosures. 

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that companies should use professional judgment in 

determining where and in what order information is presented in the financial disclosures.  

Equity method in the separate financial statements (amendments to IAS 27 (2011)) 

This document introduces the option of using the equity method even in the separate financial 

statements.  

The adoption of the interpretations and standards did not have significant impact on the 

consolidated financial statements of the Group. 

New standards and interpretations not yet effective and not early adopted by the Group 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when 
revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 
Revenue, IAS 11  Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.  

IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early 
adoption permitted. 
 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board issued the final version of IFRS 9 

Financial Instruments.  

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early 

adoption permitted. The Group currently plans to apply IFRS 9 initially on  January 1, 2018.  
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In addition, at the date of these financial statements the competent bodies of the European 

Union had not yet completed their endorsement process for the following accounting standards 

and amendments: 

 

Document title Issue date by IASB Effective from 

Standards   

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 2014  Not defined 

IFRS 16 Leases January 2016 January 1, 2019 

Interpretations   

IFRIC Interpretation 22 - Foreign Currency 
Transactions and Advance Consideration 

December 2016 
January 1, 2018 

Amendments   

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or 
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture 

September 2014 Not defined 

Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax 
Assets for Unrealised Losses 

January 2016  January 1, 2017 

Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure Initiative January 2016  January 1, 2017 

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers 

April 2016 January 1, 2018 

Amendments to IFRS 2: Classification and 
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions 

June 2016  
January 1, 2018 

Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts 

September 2016 
January 1, 2018 

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards (2014-
2016 Cycle) 

December 2016 

January 1, 2017 

January 1, 2018 

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to 
IAS 40) 

December 2016 
January 1, 2018 

 
The Group will comply with these new standards and amendments based on their relevant 

effective dates when endorsed by the European Union and it will evaluate their potential 

impacts on the consolidated financial statements. 
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3. SCOPE FOR CONSOLIDATION 

As at December 31, 2016 the consolidated financial statements of the Moncler Group include 

the parent company Moncler S.p.A. and 34 consolidated subsidiaries as detailed in the following 

table: 

Investments (in associates for consolidation) Registered office Share capital Currency
% of 

ownership
Parent company

Moncler S.p.A. Milan (Italy) 50,042,945 EUR

Industries S.p.A. Milan (Italy) 15,000,000 EUR 100.00% Moncler S.p.A.

Industries Textilvertrieb GmbH Munich (Germany) 700,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler España S.L. Madrid (Spain) 50,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Asia Pacific Ltd Hong Kong (China) 300,000 HKD 99.99% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler France S.à.r.l. Paris (France) 8,000,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler USA Inc New York (USA) 1,000 USD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler UK Ltd London (United Kingdom) 2,000,000 GBP 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Japan Corporation (*) Tokyo (Japan) 195,050,000 JPY 51.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Shanghai Commercial Co. Ltd Shanghai (China) 82,483,914 CNY 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Suisse SA Chiasso (Switzerland) 3,000,000 CHF 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Ciolina Moncler SA Berna (Switzerland) 100,000 CHF 51.00% Moncler Suisse SA

Moncler Belgium S.p.r.l. Bruxelles (Belgium) 500,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Denmark ApS Copenhagen (Denmark) 2,465,000 DKK 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Holland B.V. Amsterdam (Holland) 18,000 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Hungary KFT Budapest (Hungary) 150,000,000 HUF 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Istanbul Giyim ve Tekstil Ticaret Ltd. Sti. (*) Istanbul (Turkey) 50,000 TRY 51.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Sylt Gmbh (*) Hamm (Germany) 100,000 EUR 51.00% Industries Textilvertrieb GmbH

Moncler Rus LLC Moscow (Russian Federation) 220,000,000 RUB
99,99%

0,01%

Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Suisse SA

Moncler Brasil Comércio de moda e acessòrios Ltda. Sao Paulo (Brazil) 6,280,000 BRL
95,00%

5,00%

Moncler USA Inc

Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Taiwan Limited Taipei (China) 10,000,000 TWD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Canada Ltd Vancouver (Canada) 1,000 CAD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Prague s.r.o. Praga (Czech Republic) 200,000 CZK 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

White Tech Sp.zo.o. Katowice (Poland) 369,000 PLD 70.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Shinsegae Inc. (*) Seoul (South Korea) 5,000,000,000 KRW 51.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Middle East FZ-LLC Dubai (United Arab Emirates) 50,000 AED 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler USA Retail LLC New York (USA) 15,000,000 USD 100.00% Moncler USA Inc

Moncler Singapore PTE, Limited Singapore 650,000 SGD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Industries Yield S.r.l.
Bacau (Romania) 7,536,000 RON

99,00%

1,00%

Industries S.p.A.

Industries Textilvertrieb GmbH

Moncler UAE LLC (*) Abu Dhabi (United Arab Emirates) 1,000,000 AED 49.00% Moncler Middle East FZ-LLC

Moncler Ireland Limited Dublin (Ireland) 1 EUR 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Australia PTY LTD Melbourne (Australia) 2,500,000 AUD 100.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler CZ S.r.o. in liquidation (** Praga (Czech Republic) 0 CZK 0.00% Industries S.p.A.

Moncler Lunettes S.r.l. in liquidation (**) Milan (Italy) 0 EUR 0.00% Moncler S.p.A.

Moncler Enfant S.r.l. in liquidation (**) Milano (Italia) 0 EUR 0.00% Industries S.p.A.

(*) Fully consolidated (without attribution of interest to third parties)

(**) Company liquidated during the period  

As far as the scope of consolidation is concerned, the following changes occurred during fiscal 

year 2016 when compared to the prior year: 

• Moncler UAE LLC was established in the first quarter of 2016 and it was included in 

the consolidation scope starting from the date of its establishment; 

• Moncler Australia PTY LTD was established in the third quarter of 2016 and it was 

included in the consolidation scope starting from the date of its establishment; 

• Moncler Ireland was established in the fourth quarter of 2016 and it was included in the 

consolidation scope starting from the date of its establishment. 

Furthermore, during fiscal year 2016 the companies Moncler Lunettes S.r.l., Moncler Enfant 

S.r.l. and Moncler CZ S.r.o. have been liquidated. 



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MONCLER – ANNUAL REPORT AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 83  

4. COMMENTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME 

 

4.1. Revenues 

Revenues by distribution channel 

Revenue by distribution channels are broken down as follows: 

(Euro/000) 2016 % 2015 %

Total revenues 1,040,311 100.0% 880,393 100.0%

of which:

  Wholesale 276,138 26.5% 260,713 29.6%
  Retail 764,173 73.5% 619,680 70.4%  

Sales are made through two main distribution channels, wholesale and retail. The retail channel 

pertains to stores that are directly managed by the Group (free-standing stores, concessions, e-

commerce and outlets), while the wholesale channel pertains to stores managed by third parties 

that sell Moncler products either in single-brand spaces (i.e. shop-in-shop) or inside multi-

brand stores. 

Revenues from the retail distribution channel rose to Euro 764.2 million in 2016 compared to 

Euro 619.7 million in 2015, representing an increase of 23%, due to good organic growth and 

the continued development of our network of mono-brand retail stores (Directly Operated 

Stores, DOS). 

The wholesale channel recorded revenues of Euro 276.1 million compared to Euro 260.7 

million in 2015, an increase of 6%, supported bya good performance in the European and 

North American markets. 
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Revenues by geographical area 

Sales are broken down by geographical area as reported in the following table: 

(Euro/000) 2016 % 2015 %

Variation

% Variation

Italy 143,186 13.8% 136,997 15.6% 6,189 4.5%

EMEA, Italy excluded 303,344 29.2% 268,468 30.5% 34,876 13.0%

Asia and rest of world 418,524 40.2% 333,501 37.9% 85,023 25.5%

Americas 175,257 16.8% 141,427 16.1% 33,830 23.9%

Total 1,040,311 100.0% 880,393 100.0% 159,918 18.2%

Revenues by region

  
 

In Asia and the Rest of the World, turnover rose 25.5%, with a positive contribution of all 

markets. In China continued growth was mainly driven by the strong performance from existing 

stores. South Korea also delivered very good results. In this region, Moncler is boosting its brand 

awareness as well as its presence in the retail channel (including travel retail). Japan performed 

well with double-digit growth in 2016. 

In the Americas, turnover grew 23.9%, with good performance in both the retail and the 

wholesale distribution channels. The US retail channel benefited from new openings and a 

consistently improving trend in the fourth quarter. The Canadian market also saw significant 

growth in the wholesale and retail channels. 

In EMEA, turnover rose 13.0%, largely due to the strong retail channel performance and the 

contribution from some important openings during the period, particularly the new London Old 

Bond Street flagship store. By market, growth was driven by a strong performance in the United 

Kingdom, thanks to local customers and tourists, while growth in Germany and France 

stemmed from a very good result in both distribution channels which accelerated in the fourth 

quarter. 

In Italy, turnover increased 4.5%, driven by the network of directly operated stores as well as 

organic growth in the wholesale channel. 

For further detailed analysis on revenues, also with reference to foreign exchange rates trends, 

please refer to comments included in the Directors’ Report. 
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4.2. Cost of sales 

In 2016, cost of sales grew by Euro 26.8 million (+11.9%) in absolute terms, going from Euro 

225.5 million in 2015 to Euro 252.3 million in 2016. This overall growth is due to increased 

sales volumes and the growth of the retail channel. Cost of sales as a percentage of sales has 

decreased, going from 25.6% in 2015 to 24.3% in 2016. This decrease is due to the fact that 

the retail channel has increased its importance in the total sales going from 70.4% in 2015 to 

73.5% in 2016, on total sales. 

 

4.3. Selling expenses 

Selling expenses grew both in absolute terms, with an increase of Euro 58.9 million between 

2015 and 2016, and as a percentage of turnover, going from 28.8% in 2015 to 30.0% in 2016 

due to the development of the retail business. Selling expenses mainly include rent costs for 

Euro 155.5 million (Euro 123.3 million in 2015), personnel costs for Euro 77.7 million (Euro 

60.3 million in 2015) and costs for depreciation and amortization for Euro 36.2 million (Euro 

31.3 million in 2015). 

 

4.4. General and administrative expenses 

In 2016, general and administrative expenses amount to Euro 94.1 million, up Euro 14.6 

million  when compared to last year. General and administrative expenses represent 9.0% of 

turnover, in line with the previous year. 

 

4.5. Advertising expenses 

Also during 2016, the Group continued to invest in marketing and advertising in order to 

support and spread awareness and the prestige of the Moncler brand. The weight of advertising 

expenses on turnover is equal to 6.6% in 2016 (like in 2015), while in absolute value, 

advertising expenses go from Euro 57.8 million in 2015 to Euro 68.1 million in 2016, with an 

absolute change of Euro 10.3 million (+17.8%). 

 

4.6. Non recurring income and expenses 

The item non recurring income and expenses for 2016 includes for the total amount, equal to 

Euro 15.7 million, the costs related to the stock based compensation plans approved by the 

Shareholder’ Meeting of Moncler on February 28, 2014, on April 23, 2015 and on April 20, 

2016 (Euro 6.8 million in 2015).  

The item in 2015 included, in addition of the costs related to the above-mentioned plans, the 

effect of a revised valuation of receivables related to the sale of the "Other Brands Division", for 

the residual amount. Please refer to the Directors’ Report for more information about the 

resolution of all the disputes relating to the disposal of the “Other Brands” division. 
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The description of the stock based compensation plans and the related costs is included in note 

10.2. 

 

4.7. Operating results (EBITDA) 

In 2016, the operating results of the Moncler Group amounted to Euro 297.7 million (Euro 

252.7 million in 2015) and as a percentage of revenue amounted to 28.6% (28.7% in 2015).  

Operating results, net of non-recurring income and costs, amounted to Euro 313.4 million 

(Euro 264.1 million in 2015), and 30.1% as a percentage of revenue (30.0% in 2015), up in 

absolute value by Euro 49.3 million. 

Management believes that EBITDA is an important indicator for the valuation of the Group's 

performance, insofar as it is not influenced by the methods for determining tax or 

amortisation/depreciation. However, EBITDA is not an indicator defined by the reference 

accounting standards applied by the Group and, therefore, it may be that the methods by which 

EBITDA is calculated are not comparable with those used by other companies. 

EBITDA is calculated as follows: 

(Euro/000)

Operating result 297,681 252,679 45,002 17.8%

Non recurring income and expenses 15,738 11,389 4,349 38.2%
Operating result net of non 

recurring income and expenses 313,419 264,068 49,351 18.7%

Amortization, depreciation and 41,635 35,959 5,676 15.8%

EBITDA 355,054 300,027 55,027 18.3%

2016 2015 %2016 vs 2015

 

 

In 2016, EBITDA increased by Euro 55.1 million (+18.3%), going from Euro 300.0 million 

(34.1% of revenue) in 2015 to Euro 355.1 million (34.1% of revenue) in 2016. This increase 

mainly derives from the margin contribution of the retail channel  and the control of the fixed 

cost. 

Amortisation and depreciation in 2016 amounted to Euro 41.6 million (Euro 36.0  million in 

2015) and increased by Euro 5.7 million, in line with the increase of tangible and intangible 

assets due to the growth of the retail channel. 
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4.8. Financial income and expenses 

The caption is broken down as follows: 

(Euro/000) 2016 2015

Interest income and other financial income 492 284

Foreign currency differences - positive 0 3,983

Total financial income 492 4,267

Interests expenses and other financial charges (3,233) (5,975)

Foreign currency differences - negative (1,851) 0

Total financial expenses (5,084) (5,975)

Total net (4,592) (1,708)  

 

4.9. Income tax 

The income tax effect on the consolidated income statement is as follows: 

(Euro/000) 2016 2015

 Current income taxes (101,797) (107,860)

 Deferred tax (income) expenses 5,030 24,799

Income taxes charged in the income statement (96,767) (83,061)

  

The reconciliation between the theoretical tax burden by applying the theoretical rate of the 

parent company, and the effective tax burden is shown in the following table: 

Profit before tax 293,089 250,971

Income tax using the Company's theoretic tax rate (80,599) 27.5% (69,017) 27.5%

Temporary differences (8,333) 2.8% (21,682) 8.6%

Permanent differences 1,914 (0.7%) (1,300) 0.5%

Other differences (14,780) 5.0% (15,862) 6.3%

Deferred taxes recognized in the income statement 5,030 (1.7%) 24,799 (9.9%)

Income tax at effective tax rate (96,767) 33.0% (83,061) 33.1%

Tax rate 

2015

(Euro/000)

Reconciliation theoretic-effective tax rate
Taxable 

Amount 2016

Tax Amount 

2016

Tax rate 

2016

Taxable 

Amount 2015

Tax 

Amount 

 

The caption other differences mainly includes IRAP (current) and the other taxes different from 

IRES. 
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4.10. Personnel expenses 

The following table lists the detail of the main personnel expenses by nature, compared with 

those of the previous year: 

(Euro/000) 2016 2015

Wages and salaries (94,146) (69,632)

Social security costs (16,342) (13,134)

Accrual for employment benefits (5,735) (4,772)

Total (116,223) (87,538)  

Personnel expenses increased by 32.8% when compared to prior year, from Euro 87.5 million in 

2015 to Euro 116.2 million in 2016. This increase is mainly due the growth in directly operated 

stores, the overall growth of the structure and the acquisition of the production site in Romania. 

The remuneration related to the members of the Board of Directors is commented separately in 

the related-party section (note 10.1) 

The costs relating to the stock based compensation plans, equal to Euro 15.7 million (Euro 6.8 

million in 2015) are separately commented in note 10.2. 

The following table depicts the number of employees (full-time-equivalent) in 2016 compared 

to the prior year: 

Average FTE by area

Number 2016 2015

Italy 665 598

Other European countries 1,025 390

Asia and Japan 771 651

Americas 239 159

Total 2,700 1,798  

The actual number of employees of the Group as at December 31, 2016 is 3,216 (2,424 as at 

December 31, 2015). 

The total number of employees increased principally as a result of the growth in directly 

operated stores, as well as the acquisition of the production site in Romania and the overall 

growth of the structure. 
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4.11. Depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation and amortization are broken down as follows: 

(Euro/000) 2016 2015

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (32,756) (27,762)

Amortization of intangible assets (8,879) (8,197)

Total Depreciation and Amortization (41,635) (35,959)  

The increase in both depreciation and amortization is mainly due to investments made in 

connection with the new store openings. Please refer to comments made in notes 5.1 and 5.3 for 

additional details related to investments made during the year. 

 

5. COMMENTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

 

5.1. Goodwill, brands and other intangible assets 

 

Brands and other intangible December 31, 2015

(Euro/000)

Gross value

Accumulated 

amortization 

and impairment

Net value Net value

Brands 223,900 0 223,900 223,900

Key money 48,468 (22,509) 25,959 23,346

Software 26,703 (15,719) 10,984 9,275

Other intangible assets 8,109 (4,497) 3,612 3,318

Assets in progress 2,427 0 2,427 8,175

Goodwill 155,582 0 155,582 155,582

Total 465,189 (42,725) 422,464 423,596

December 31, 2016
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Intangible assets changes are shown in the following tables: 

As at December 31, 2016 

Gross value Brands and other 

intangible assets

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2016 223,900 0 41,511 21,790 6,795 8,175 155,582 457,753

Acquisitions 0 0 0 4,868 1,569 2,427 0 8,864

Disposals 0 0 0 (50) (4) 0 0 (54)

Translation adjustement 0 0 (51) 95 (3) (1,167) 0 (1,126)

Other movements, including 

transfers
0 0 7,008 0 (248) (7,008) 0 (248)

December 31, 2016 223,900 0 48,468 26,703 8,109 2,427 155,582 465,189

Accumulated amortization 

and impairment Brands and 

other intangible assets

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2016 0 0 (18,165) (12,515) (3,477) 0 0 (34,157)

Amortization 0 0 (4,392) (3,212) (1,275) 0 0 (8,879)

Disposals 0 0 0 37 3 0 0 40

Translation adjustement 0 0 48 (29) 4 0 0 23

Other movements, including 

transfers
0 0 0 0 248 0 0 248

December 31, 2016 0 0 (22,509) (15,719) (4,497) 0 0 (42,725)

Goodwill Total

Goodwill Total

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

Brands
Licence 

rights

Key money 

and 

leasehold 

rights

Software
Other intangible 

assets

Brands
Licence 

rights

Key money 

and 

leasehold 

rights

Software
Other intangible 

assets

 

As at December 31, 2015 

Gross value Brands and other 

intangible assets

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2015 223,900 0 38,448 17,032 4,645 942 155,582 440,549

Acquisitions 0 0 2,386 4,256 2,626 7,702 0 16,970

Disposals 0 0 (119) (104) (20) (25) 0 (268)

Translation adjustement 0 0 796 141 55 38 0 1,030

Other movements, including 

transfers
0 0 0 465 (511) (482) 0 (528)

December 31, 2015 223,900 0 41,511 21,790 6,795 8,175 155,582 457,753

Accumulated amortization 

and impairment Brands and 

other intangible assets

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2015 0 0 (13,871) (9,716) (2,609) 0 0 (26,196)

Depreciation 0 0 (4,083) (2,826) (1,288) 0 0 (8,197)

Disposals 0 0 119 51 8 0 0 178

Translation adjustement 0 0 (330) (22) (28) 0 0 (380)

Other movements, including 

transfers
0 0 0 (2) 440 0 0 438

December 31, 2015 0 0 (18,165) (12,515) (3,477) 0 0 (34,157)

Other intangible 

assets

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

Goodwill TotalBrands
Licence 

rights

Key money 

and 

leasehold 

rights

Software

Other intangible 

assets

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

Goodwill TotalBrands
Licence 

rights

Key money 

and 

leasehold 

rights

Software

 

The increase in the caption software pertains to the investments in information technology to 

support the business and the corporate functions. 

The assets in progress mainly refer to a key money of a boutique in Europe. Other movements 

refer to the reclassification of the amounts paid last year for new stores became operating during 

the year. 

No indicators were identified suggesting impairment of the residual carrying amounts. 

Please refer to the Directors’ report for additional information related to investments made 

during the year. 
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5.2. Impairment of intangible fixed assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill 

The captions Brands, Other intangible fixed assets with an indefinite useful life and Goodwill 

deriving from previous acquisitions have not been amortised, but have been tested for 

impairment by management. 

The impairment test on the brand was performed by comparing its carrying value with that 

derived from the discounted cash flow method applying the Royalty Relief Method, based on 

which the cash flows are linked to the recognition of a royalty percentage applied to revenues 

that the brand is able to generate. 

The recoverable amount of goodwill has been tested based on the "asset side" approach which 

compares the value in use of the cash-generating unit with the carrying amount of its net 

invested capital. 

For the 2016 valuation, the expected cash flows and revenues were derived from the Business 

Plan 2016-2018 approved by the Board of Directors on December 16, 2015, from the Budget 

2017 approved by the Board of Directors on December 15, 2016 and from the projection on 

year 2019 of the main assumptions underlying the aforementioned Business Plan. 

The "g" rate used was 2%. 

The discount rate was calculated using the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC), by 

weighting the expected rate of return on invested capital, net of hedging costs from a sample of 

companies within the same industry. The calculation took into account fluctuation in the 

market as compared to the previous year and the resulting impact on interest rates. The 

weighted average cost of capital (WACC) was calculated at 8.30%. 

The results of the sensitivity analysis indicate that the carrying amount of the Moncler brand is 

in line with the benchmark with a “g” rate = 0% and WACC = 18.43%. 

Similarly, the same sensitivity analysis applied to the entire cash-generating unit shows a full 

recovery considering changes in parameters still higher than those indicated for the brand, 

showing the wide recoverability of goodwill. 

It also shows that the market capitalization of the company, based on the average price of 

Moncler share in 2016, shows a significant positive difference with respect to the Group net 

equity, confirming again the value of the goodwill. 
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5.3. Net property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipments December 31, 2015

(Euro/000)

Gross value

Accumulated 

depreciation and 

impairment

Net value Net value

Land and buildings 2,586 (283) 2,303 3,284

Plant and Equipment 10,519 (6,936) 3,583 2,151

Fixtures and fittings 77,737 (40,774) 36,963 29,234

Leasehold improvements 135,498 (62,402) 73,096 55,827

Other fixed assets 14,823 (10,130) 4,693 3,669

Assets in progress 3,287 0 3,287 8,069

Total 244,450 (120,525) 123,925 102,234

December 31, 2016

 

The change in property, plant and equipment is included in the following tables: 

As at December 31, 2016 

Gross value Property, plant and 

equipment

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2016 5,922 8,327 62,001 101,633 12,316 8,069 198,268

Acquisitions 24 1,100 18,779 29,384 2,816 2,597 54,700

Disposals (3,358) (239) (2,729) (3,447) (310) (245) (10,328)

Translation adjustement (2) 1 324 1,543 31 (106) 1,791

Other movements, including transfers 0 1,330 (638) 6,385 (30) (7,028) 19

December 31, 2016 2,586 10,519 77,737 135,498 14,823 3,287 244,450

Accumulated depreciation and 

impairment PPE

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2016 (2,638) (6,176) (32,767) (45,806) (8,647) 0 (96,034)

Depreciation (260) (709) (10,923) (19,143) (1,721) 0 (32,756)

Disposals 2,615 215 2,500 3,734 267 0 9,331

Translation adjustement 0 (1) (175) (595) (13) 0 (784)

Other movements, including transfers 0 (265) 591 (592) (16) 0 (282)

December 31, 2016 (283) (6,936) (40,774) (62,402) (10,130) 0 (120,525)

Other fixed 

assets

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

Land and 

buildings

Plant and 

Equipment

Fixtures and 

fittings

Land and 

buildings

Plant and 

Equipment

Fixtures and 

fittings
Total

Leasehold 

improvements

Other fixed 

assets

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

Total

Leasehold 

improvements

 

 

As at December 31, 2015 

Gross value Property, plant and 

equipment

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2015 3,358 7,132 47,435 74,046 10,903 2,385 145,259

Acquisitions 2,564 1,227 13,548 23,845 1,684 7,819 50,687

Disposals 0 (51) (1,819) (1,378) (548) (219) (4,015)

Translation adjustement 0 15 2,263 3,332 107 92 5,809

Other movements, including transfers 0 4 574 1,788 170 (2,008) 528

December 31, 2015 5,922 8,327 62,001 101,633 12,316 8,069 198,268

Accumulated depreciation and 

impairment PPE

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2015 (2,433) (5,635) (22,613) (29,899) (7,425) 0 (68,005)

Depreciation (205) (545) (10,656) (14,702) (1,654) 0 (27,762)

Disposals 0 15 1,355 785 480 0 2,635

Translation adjustement 0 (11) (891) (1,513) (49) 0 (2,464)

Impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 38 (477) 1 0 (438)

December 31, 2015 (2,638) (6,176) (32,767) (45,806) (8,647) 0 (96,034)

Leasehold 

improvements

Other fixed 

assets

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

Total

Total

Land and 

buildings

Land and 

buildings

Plant and 

Equipment

Fixtures and 

fittings

Leasehold 

improvements

Other fixed 

assets

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

Plant and 

Equipment

Fixtures and 

fittings
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The change in property plant and equipment in 2016 shows an increase in the captions fixtures 

and fittings, leasehold improvements and assets in progress and advances: all of these captions 

are mainly related to the development of the retail network. 

During the year, no indicators were found requiring impairment testing to be performed on 

tangible assets. 

Please refer to the Directors’ report for an analysis of investments made during the year. 

 

5.4. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only when there is a law within a given 

tax jurisdiction that provides for such right to offset. The balances were as follows as at 

December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015: 

Deferred taxation

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016
December 31, 2015

Deferred tax assets 74,682 65,970

Deferred tax liabilities (70,953) (68,753)

 Net amount 3,729 (2,783)  

Deferred tax liabilities resulting from temporary differences associated with intangible assets are 

related to fiscal year 2008 in connection with the allocation of the brand name Moncler 

resulting from the excess price paid during acquisition. 

The change in deferred tax assets and liabilities, without taking into consideration the right of 

offset of a given tax jurisdiction, is detailed in the following table: 
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Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

(Euro/000)

Tangible and intangible assets 4,578 831 68 (636) 4,841

Financial assets 0 0 0 0 0

Inventories 48,666 7,171 572 108 56,517

Trade receivables 2,157 557 25 0 2,739

Derivatives 0 0 0 0 0

Employee benefits 1,456 35 18 124 1,681

Provisions 4,579 922 199 (132) 5,568

Trade payables 237 (122) 2 2 119

Other temporary items 4,104 (885) 28 (31) 3,216

Tax loss carried forward 193 (37) 0 (155) 1

Tax assets 65,970 8,472 912 (720) 74,682

Tangible and intangible assets (65,898) (3,284) (233) 527 (68,888)

Financial assets 0 0 0 52 52

Inventories (474) (138) 1 1 (610)

Trade receivables 0 0 0 0 0

Derivatives 0 0 0 0 (29)

Employee benefits (117) 0 0 0 (117)

Provisions 0 0 0 0 0

Trade payables 0 0 0 (2) (2)

Other temporary items (2,264) (20) 0 (77) (1,359)

Tax liabilities (68,753) (3,442) (232) 501 (70,953)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (2,783) 5,030 680 (219) 3,729

Closing 

balance - 

December 31, 

2016

Opening 

balance - 

January 1, 

2016

Taxes 

charged to 

the income 

statement

Effect of 

currency 

translation

Other 

movements

 

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

(Euro/000)

Tangible and intangible assets 2,933 1,692 (158) 111 4,578

Financial assets 0 0 0 0 0

Inventories 33,422 12,204 3,020 20 48,666

Trade receivables 278 1,892 (10) (3) 2,157

Derivatives 1,077 0 0 (890) 0

Employee benefits 1,621 123 80 (319) 1,456

Provisions 2,469 1,894 195 21 4,579

Trade payables 64 163 10 0 237

Other temporary items 3,583 23 81 417 4,104

Tax loss carried forward 521 (340) 12 0 193

Tax assets 45,968 17,651 3,230 (643) 65,970

Tangible and intangible assets (72,254) 6,509 (126) (27) (65,898)

Financial assets 0 0 0 0 0

Inventories (478) 21 (17) 0 (474)

Trade receivables 0 0 0 0 0

Derivatives 0 0 0 0 0

Employee benefits (4) 0 0 4 (117)

Provisions 0 0 0 0 0

Trade payables 0 0 0 0 0

Other temporary items (1,700) 618 0 1 (2,264)

Tax liabilities (74,436) 7,148 (143) (22) (68,753)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (28,468) 24,799 3,087 (665) (2,783)

Other 

movements

Closing 

balance - 

December 31, 

2015

Opening 

balance - 

January 1, 

2015

Taxes 

charged to 

the income 

statement

Effect of 

currency 

translation
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The taxable amount on which deferred tax assets have been calculated is detailed in the 

following table: 

Deferred tax assets

(Euro/000)

Tangible and intangible assets 16,347 4,841 15,530 4,578

Financial assets 0 0 0 0

Inventories 215,251 56,517 178,526 48,666

Trade receivables 11,315 2,739 11,125 2,157

Derivatives 0 0 0 0

Employee benefits 5,925 1,681 4,806 1,456

Provisions 16,491 5,568 16,273 4,579

Trade payables 340 119 678 237

Other temporary items 11,531 3,216 11,642 4,104

Tax loss carried forward 0 1 565 193

Tax assets 277,200 74,682 239,145 65,970

Tangible and intangible assets (243,508) (68,888) (234,789) (65,898)

Financial assets 217 52 0 0

Inventories (2,203) (610) (1,691) (474)

Trade receivables 0 0 0 0

Derivatives (610) (29) 0 0

Employee benefits 0 (117) (427) (117)

Provisions 0 0 0 0

Trade payables (7) (2) 0 0

Other temporary items (5,175) (1,359) (8,962) (2,264)

Tax loss carried forward 0 0 0 0

Tax liabilities (251,286) (70,953) (245,869) (68,753)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 25,914 3,729 (6,724) (2,783)

Taxable 

Amount 2015

Closing 

balance - 

December 31, 

2015

Closing 

balance - 

December 31, 

2016

Taxable 

Amount 2016
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5.5. Inventory 

Inventory is broken down as follows: 

Inventory

(Euro/000) December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Raw materials 54,219 49,891

Work-in-progress 12,163 9,244

Finished products 145,498 130,687

Inventories, gross 211,880 189,822

Obsolescence provision (76,031) (55,759)

Total 135,849 134,063  

The inventories of raw materials increased by approximately Euro 4.3 million principally as a 

result of volume increases. The inventories of finished products increased by approximately 

Euro 14.8 million mainly due to the growth of the retail business. 

The obsolescence provision is calculated using management’s best estimate based on the season 

needs and the inventory balance based on passed sales trends through alternative channels and 

future sales volumes. 

The change in the obsolescence provision is summarized in the following table: 

Obsolescence provision - 

movements

(Euro/000)

Obsolescence provision (55,759) (30,044) 10,205 (433) (76,031)

Total (55,759) (30,044) 10,205 (433) (76,031)

Obsolescence provision - 

movements

(Euro/000)

Obsolescence provision (39,602) (25,193) 9,214 (178) (55,759)

Total (39,602) (25,193) 9,214 (178) (55,759)

Accrued
January 1, 

2016
Used

Translation 

Difference

December 31, 

2016

January 1, 

2015
Accrued Used

Translation 

Difference

December 31, 

2015
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5.6. Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are as follows: 

Trade receivables

(Euro/000) December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Trade account receivables 113,931 98,328

Allowance for doubtful debt (5,408) (5,947)

Allowance for returns and discounts (3,659) (2,599)

Total, net value 104,864 89,782  

Trade receivables are related to the Group’s wholesale business and they include balances with 

a collection time not greater than three months. During 2016 and 2015, there were no 

concentration of credit risk greater than 10% associated to individual customers. Please refer to 

note 9.1 for information regarding the exposure of trade receivables to currency risks. 

The change in the allowance for doubtful debt and sales return is detailed in the following 

tables: 

Doubtful debt and sales returns 

allowance

(Euro/000)

Allowance for doubtful debt (5,947) (1,495) 2,047 (13) (5,408)

Allowance for returns and discounts (2,599) (3,662) 2,627 (25) (3,659)

Total (8,546) (5,157) 4,674 (38) (9,067)

Doubtful debt and sales returns 

allowance

(Euro/000)

Allowance for doubtful debt (4,119) (3,186) 1,412 (54) (5,947)

Allowance for returns and discounts (1,244) (2,562) 1,244 (37) (2,599)

Total (5,363) (5,748) 2,656 (91) (8,546)

December 31, 

2015

December 31, 

2016
Accrued

January 1, 

2016
Used

Translation 

Difference

January 1, 

2015
Accrued Used

Translation 

Difference

 

The allowance for doubtful debt was calculated in accordance with management’s best estimate 

based on the ageing of accounts receivable as well as the solvency of the most aged accounts and 

also taking into consideration any balances turned over into collection proceedings. Trade 

receivables written down are related to specific balances that were past due and for which 

collection is uncertain. 

 

5.7. Cash and bank 

As at December 31, 2016 the caption cash on hand and in bank amounts to Euro 243.4 million 

(Euro 148.6 million as at December 31, 2015) and includes cash and cash equivalents as well 

as the funds available in banks. 

The amount included in the consolidated financial statements represents the fair value at the 

date of the financial statements. The credit risk is very limited since the other parties are class A 

financial institutions. 
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The consolidated statement of cash flows includes the changes in cash and cash in bank as well 

as the bank overdrafts.  

The following table shows the reconciliation between cash and cash in bank with those included 

in the consolidated statement of cash flows: 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the 

Statement of cash flows

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

Cash in hand and at banks 243,389 148,603

Bank overdraft (4) (2,522)

Total 243,385 146,081  

 

5.8. Financial current assets 

The financial current assets refers to the receivables arising from the market valuation of the 

derivatives on exchange rates hedges. 

 

5.9. Other current and non-current assets 

 

Other current and non-current assets

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

Prepayments and accrued income - current 5,629 6,652

Other current receivables 7,727 14,333

Other current assets 13,356 20,985

Prepayments and accrued income - non-current 1,755 2,009

Security / guarantees deposits 22,514 20,283

Other non-current receivables 422 384

Other non-current assets 24,691 22,676

Total 38,047 43,661  

As at December 31, 2016, accrued income and deferred expenses amount to Euro 5.6 million 

(Euro 6.7 million as at December 31, 2015) and mainly pertain to rent. 

Other current receivables mainly comprise the receivable due from the tax authority for value 

added tax.  

The reduction of the caption other current receivables is due to the transaction related to the 

Other Brands Division disposal. 

Prepayments and accrued income non-current amount to Euro 1.8 million (Euro 2.0 million as 

at December 31, 2015) and pertain to prepaid rents that extend over the current year. 
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Deposits are mostly related to the amounts paid on behalf of the lessee as a guarantee to the 

lease agreement.  

There are no differences between the amounts included in the consolidated financial statements 

and their fair values. 

 

5.10. Trade payables 

Trade payables amount to Euro 132.6 million (Euro 113.0 million as at December 31, 2015) 

and pertain to current amounts due to suppliers for goods and services. These payables pertain 

to amounts that are payable within the upcoming year and do not include amounts that will be 

paid after 12 months. 

In 2016 and 2015 there are no outstanding positions associated to individual suppliers that 

exceed 10% of the total value. 

There are no differences between the amounts included in the consolidated financial statements 

and their respective fair values. 

Please refer to note 9.1 for an analysis of trade payable denominated in foreign currencies. 

 

5.11. Other current and non-current liabilities 

 

Other current and non-current liabilities

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

Deferred income and accrued expenses - current 1,552 1,494

Advances and payments on account to customers 3,467 3,283

Employee and social institutions 26,414 16,556

Tax accounts payable, excluding income taxes 12,608 5,626

Other current payables 6,278 5,251

Other current liabilities 50,319 32,210

Deferred income and accrued expenses - non-current 12,043 6,222

Other non-current liabilities 12,043 6,222

Total 62,362 38,432  

The caption deferred income and accrued expenses current pertains mainly to accrued expenses 

on rents. 

The caption taxes payable includes mainly value added tax (VAT) and payroll tax withholding. 

The caption deferred income and accrued expenses non-current pertains to accrued expenses on 

rents extending over a year. 
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5.12. Tax assets and liabilities 

Tax assets amount to Euro 5.6 million as at December 31, 2016 (Euro 4.2 million as at 

December 31, 2015) and they pertain to receivables for advance payments. 

Tax liabilities amounted to Euro 24.6 million as at December 31, 2016 (Euro 36.6 million as at 

December 31, 2015). They are recognized net of current tax assets, where the offsetting relates 

to the same tax jurisdiction and tax system.  

 

5.13. Non-current provisions 

Provision changes are shown in the following table: 

Provision for contingencies and losses

(Euro/000) Increase Decrease
Translation 

differences

Other 

movements

Tax litigations (1,015) (7,500) 0 0 0 (8,515)

Other non current contingencies (4,673) (1,252) 2,664 (104) 0 (3,365)

Total (5,688) (8,752) 2,664 (104) 0 (11,880)

January 1, 

2016

December 31, 

2016

 

Provision for contingencies and losses

(Euro/000) Increase Decrease
Translation 

differences

Other 

movements

Tax litigations (1,015) 0 0 0 0 (1,015)

Other non current contingencies (2,095) (3,001) 505 (82) 0 (4,673)

Total (3,110) (3,001) 505 (82) 0 (5,688)

January 1, 

2015

December 31, 

2015

 

The caption tax litigations reflects the risk associated with ongoing tax audits. 

The caption other non-current contingencies includes the costs for restoring stores and the costs 

associated with ongoing disputes. 

 

5.14. Pension funds and agents leaving indemnities 

The changes in the funds are depicted in the following table:  

Employees pension funds

(Euro/000) Increase Decrease
Translation 

differences

Other 

movements

Pension funds (1,988) (456) 142 (3) (395) (2,700)

Agents leaving indemnities (2,616) (30) 88 0 0 (2,558)

Total (4,604) (486) 230 (3) (395) (5,258)

January 1, 

2016

December 31, 

2016

 

Employees pension funds

(Euro/000) Increase Decrease
Translation 

differences

Other 

movements

Pension funds (2,146) (190) 165 0 183 (1,988)

Agents leaving indemnities (2,966) (39) 389 0 0 (2,616)

Total (5,112) (229) 554 0 183 (4,604)

January 1, 

2015

December 31, 

2015

 

The pension funds pertain mainly to the Italian entities of the Group. Following the recent 

welfare reform, beginning on January 1, 2007, the liability has taken the form of a defined 

contribution plan. Therefore, the amount of pension fund (TFR) accrued prior to the 

application of the reform and not yet paid to the employees as at the date of the consolidated 
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financial statements is considered as a defined benefit plan, changes in which are shown in the 

following table: 

Employees pension funds - movements

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

Net recognized liability - opening (1,914) (2,082)

Interest costs (39) (31)

Service costs (156) (159)

Payments 142 175

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) (225) 183

Net recognized liability - closing (2,192) (1,914)  

The actuarial valuation of employee termination benefits (TFR) is based on the Projected Unit 

Credit Cost method. Reported below are the main economic and demographic assumptions 

utilised for actuarial valuations. 

Assumptions

Discount rate 1.31%

Inflation rate 1.50%

Nominal rate of wage growth 1.50%

Labour turnover rate 3.58%

Probability of request of advances of TFR 4.42%

Percentage required in case of advance 70.00%

Life Table - Male M2015 (*)

Life Table - Female F2015 (*)

(*) Table ISTAT - resident population  

The following table shows the effect of variations, within reasonable limits, in key actuarial 

assumptions on defined benefit plan obligations at year end. 

Sensitivity analysis

(Euro/000) Variazione

Discount rate +0,5% (125)

Discount rate -0,5% 125

Rate of payments Increases x(1+20%) (14)

Rate of payments Decreases x(1-20%) 15

Rate of Price Inflation Increases (+0,5%) 89

Rate of Price Inflation Decreases (-0,5%) (85)

Rate of Salary Increases (+0,5%) 22

Rate of Salary Decreases (-0,5%) (20)

Increase the retirement age (+1 year) 8

Decrease the retirement age (-1 year) (8)

Increase longevity (+1 year) 0

Decrease longevity (-1 year) (0)  
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5.15. Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are detailed in the following table: 

Borrowings

(Euro/000) December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Bank overdraft and short-term bank loans 4 2,525

Short-term portion of long-term bank loans 62,053 68,283

Other short-term loans 2,720 374

Short-term borrowings 64,777 71,182

Long-term borrowings 75,835 127,016

Total 140,612 198,198  

Short-term borrowings include advance payments on invoices, bank receipts and short-term 

loans related to working capital as well as the current portion of long-term bank loans. 

Long-term borrowings include the portion with a due date greater than a year payable both to 

financial institution and third parties. 

The following tables show the break down of the borrowing in accordance with their maturity 

date: 

Ageing of the financial liabilities

(Euro/000)

December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

Within 2 years 63,555 62,022

From 2 to 5 years 12,280 64,994

Beyond 5 years 0 0

Total 75,835 127,016  

No new medium/long-term loans were taken out during 2016. The change in short and long 

terms borrowings reflects the normal repayment instalments as per the related agreements. 

As at December 31, 2016, the company Moncler S.p.A. had an outstanding loan of Euro 24 

million (Euro 48 million as at December 31, 2015), payable on a half-year basis and expiring 

on December 31, 2017. 

At the same date, the Group had medium term unsecured loans for Euro 40.3 million (Euro 

84.7 million as at December 31, 2015). 

The loans do not include covenants. 

As at December 31, 2015, the IRS contracts hedging the exposure to interest rate risk on 

outstanding unsecured loans were terminated upon expiry. 

Finally, the caption other short-term loans includes also the positive fair value, equal to Euro 

0.2 million (negative Euro 0.4 million as at December 31, 2015), related to the contracts to 

hedge the exchange rate risk. Please refer to note 9.3 for more details. 
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The net financial position is detailed in the following table: 

Net financial position

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

Cash and cash equivalents 243,389 148,603

Other short-term financial receivables 3,019 0

Debts and other current financial liabilities (64,777) (71,182)

Debts and other non-current financial liabilities (75,835) (127,016)

Total 105,796 (49,595)  

Net financial position

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

A. Cash in hand 1,178 976

B. Cash at banks and cash equivalents 242,211 147,627

C. Available for sale securities 0 0

D. Liquidity (A)+(B)+(C) 243,389 148,603

E .Current financial assets 3,019 0

F. Payable to banks, current (4) (2,525)

G. Current portion of long-term debt (62,053) (68,283)

H. Other current financial debt (2,720) (374)

I. Current financial debt (F)+(G)+(H) (64,777) (71,182)

J. Net current financial debt (I)+(E)-(D) 181,631 77,421

K. Payable to bank, non-current (2,092) (64,114)

L. Bonds issued 0 0

M. Other non-current payables (73,743) (62,902)

N. Non-current financial debt (K)+(L)+(M) (75,835) (127,016)

O. Net financial debt (J)+(N) 105,796 (49,595)  

Net financial position as defined by the CESR Recommendation of February 10, 2005 (referred to by the Consob Communication of 
July 28, 2006). 

 

5.16. Shareholders’ equity 

Changes in shareholders' equity for 2016 and the comparative period are included in the 

consolidated statements of changes in equity. 

As at December 31, 2016 the subscribed share capital constitute by 250,214,724 shares was 

fully paid and amounted to Euro 50,042,945 with a nominal value of Euro 0.20 per share. 

On February 12, 2016 Moncler bought 1,000,000 Company shares, equal to 0.4% of the 

current share capital, for a total amount of Euro 12.8 million. 

The legal reserve and premium reserve pertain to the parent company Moncler S.p.A. 

In 2016 the parent company distributed dividends to the Group Shareholders for an amount of 

Euro 34.9 million (Euro 30 million in 2015). 
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The increase of the share capital and the share premium reserve arises from the exercise of n. 

90,266 vested options (for the same number of shares) in relation to the stock option plan 

approved by the shareholders meeting of Moncler S.p.A. dated February 28, 2014 at the 

exercise price of Euro 10.20 per share. 

The other changes in shareholders' equity result from the accounting treatment of stock option 

plans. 

The change in retained earnings mainly relates to the payment of dividends to shareholders and 

the adjustment to market value of the financial liabilities towards non-banking parties. 

The caption other reserves includes other comprehensive income comprising the exchange rate 

translation reserve of financial statements reported in foreign currencies, the reserve for hedging 

interest rate risks and exchange rates risks and the reserve for actuarial gains/losses. The 

translation reserve includes the exchange differences emerging from the conversion of the 

financial statements of the foreign consolidated companies; the changes are mainly due to the 

differences resulting from the consolidation of the Japanese company and of the American 

companies, mitigated by the differences resulting from the consolidation of the other group 

subsidiaries. The hedging reserve includes the effective portion of the net differences 

accumulated in the fair value of the derivative hedge instruments. Changes to these reserves 

were as follows: 

Other comprehensive income

(Euro/000)
Value before 

tax effect
Tax effect

Value after 

tax effect

Value before 

tax effect
Tax effect

Value after 

tax effect

Reserve as at January 1, 2015 (637) 0 (637) (1,314) 339 (975)

Changes in the period 4,218 0 4,218 1,289 (354) 935

Translation differences of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal in the income statement of 

the period
0 0 0 0 0 0

Reserve as at December 31, 2015 3,581 0 3,581 (25) (15) (40)

Reserve as at January 1, 2016 3,581 0 3,581 (25) (15) (40)

Changes in the period 1,692 0 1,692 (212) 57 (155)

Translation differences of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal in the income statement of 

the period
0 0 0 0 0 0

Reserve as at December 31, 2016 5,273 0 5,273 (237) 42 (195)

Cumulative translation adj. reserve Other OCI items

 

 

Earning per share 

Earning per share for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 is included 

in the following table and is based on the relationship between net income attributable to the 

Group and the average number of shares, net of treasury shares owned. 

The diluted earnings per share is in line with the basic earnings per share as at December 31, 

2016 as there are no significant dilutive effects arising from stock based compensation plans. 
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It should be noted that, for the diluted earnings per share calculation, the treasury share method 

has been applied, prescribed by IAS 33 paragraph 45 for stock-based compensation plans. 

Earnings per share

2016 2015

Net result of the period (Euro/000) 196,043       167,863       

Average number of shares related to parent's 

Shareholders
249,268,029 250,086,129

Earnings attributable to Shareholders (Unit of 

Euro)
0.79 0.67

Diluited earnings attributable to Shareholders 

(Unit of Euro)
0.78 0.67

 

 

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

For the purposes of IFRS 8 "Operating Segments", the Group's activity is part of a single 

operating segment referred to Moncler business. 

 

7. COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES GIVEN 

7.1. Commitments 

The Group’s commitments pertain mostly to lease agreements related to the location where sales 

are generated (stores, outlets and showrooms), the location where inventories are stored and the 

location where the administrative functions are performed. 

As at December 31, 2016, the outstanding operating lease balance was as follows: 

 

Operating lease commitments - 

future minimum payments

(Euro/000)

DOS 62,773           193,111         104,639         360,523         

Outlet 4,308             16,522           10,263           31,092           

Other buildings 7,026             15,579           1,083             23,688           

Less than 1 

year

Between 1 

and 5 years

Beyond 5 

years
Total

 

As at December 31 2015, the outstanding operating lease balance was as follows: 

Operating lease commitments - 

future minimum payments

(Euro/000)

DOS 43,218           142,641         108,629         294,488         

Outlet 3,893             14,458           10,154           28,505           

Other buildings 5,286             19,852           12,160           37,298           

Beyond 5 

years
Total

Less than 1 

year

Between 1 

and 5 years
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7.2. Guarantees given 

As at December 31, 2016 the Group had given the following guarantees: 

Guarantees and bails given

(Euro/000) December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Guarantees and bails given for the benefit of:

    Third parties/companies 11,682 10,115

Total guarantees and bails 11,682 10,115  

Guarantees pertain mainly to lease agreements for the new stores. 

 

8. CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

As the Group operates globally, it is subject to legal and tax risks which may arise during the 

performance of its ordinary activities. Based on information available to date, the Group 

believes that as at the date of the consolidated financial statements, the provisions in 

consolidated financial statements are adequate to ensure that the consolidated financial 

statements give a true and fair view of the Group's financial position and results of operations. 

 

9. INFORMATION ABOUT FINANCIAL RISKS 

The Group's financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, loans, receivables and 

trade payables and other current receivables and payables and non-current assets as well as 

derivatives. 

The Group is exposed to financial risks related to its operations: market risk (mainly related to 

exchange rates and interest rates), credit risk (associated with both regular client relations and 

financing activities), liquidity risk (with particular reference to the availability of financial 

resources and access to the credit market and financial instruments) and capital risk. 

Financial risk management is carried out by Headquarters, which ensures primarily that there 

are sufficient financial resources to meet the needs of business development and that resources 

are properly invested in income-generating activities. 

The Group uses derivative instruments to hedge its exposure to specific market risks, such as 

the risk associated with fluctuations in exchange rates and interest rates, on the basis of the 

policies established by the Board of Directors. 

 

9.1.  Market risk 

Foreign exchange rate risk 

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange rate risk primarily 

related to the U.S. Dollar, the Japanese Yen and the Chinese Renminbi and to a lesser extent to 

the Hong Kong Dollar, the British Pound, Korean Dollars and the Swiss Franc. 
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The Group regularly assesses its exposure to financial market risks and manages these risks 

through the use of derivative financial instruments, in accordance with its established risk 

management policies. 

The Group’s policy permits derivatives to be used only for managing the exposure to 

fluctuations in exchange rates connected with future cash flows and not for speculative 

purposes. 

During 2016, the Group put in place a policy to hedge the exchange rates risk on transactions 

with reference to the major currencies to which it is exposed: USD, JPY, CNY, HKD, GBP, KRW 

and CHF. 

The instruments used for these hedges are mainly Currency Forward Contracts and Currency 

Option Contracts. 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments as cash flow hedges for the purpose of 

redetermining the exchange rate at which forecasted transactions denominated in foreign 

currencies will be accounted for. 

Counterparties to these agreements are major and diverse financial institutions. 

The exposure of contingent assets and liabilities denominated in currencies is detailed in the 

following table (the Euro amount of each currency): 

Details of the balances expressed 

in foreign currency

(Euro/000) Euro JP Yen US Dollar CN Yuan HK Dollar CH Franc GB Pound KR Won CD Dollar Other Total

Cash and cash equivalent 75,201 26,261 40,870 30,811 16,777 5,754 15,698 13,226 4,804 13,987 243,389

Financial assets 2,887 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 132 3,019

Trade receivable 26,209 32,681 8,405 20,132 908 408 3,727 8,770 601 3,023 104,864

Other current assets 7,070 980 452 795 99 52 914 273 0 2,721 13,356

Other non-current assets 4,113 5,270 3,221 2,523 6,114 511 493 782 633 1,031 24,691

Total assets 115,480 65,192 52,948 54,261 23,898 6,725 20,832 23,051 6,038 20,894 389,319

Trade payables (92,696) (16,161) (6,464) (3,546) (4,042) (448) (759) (1,704) (724) (6,042) (132,586)

Borrowings (140,608) 0 (3) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) (140,612)

Other current payables (28,710) (4,085) (5,608) (2,471) (1,356) (648) (3,145) (2,171) (486) (1,639) (50,319)

Other non-current payables (1,257) 0 (10,199) 0 0 0 0 (462) (125) 0 (12,043)

Total liabilities (263,271) (20,246) (22,274) (6,017) (5,398) (1,096) (3,904) (4,337) (1,335) (7,682) (335,560)

Total, net foreign positions (147,791) 44,946 30,674 48,244 18,500 5,629 16,928 18,714 4,703 13,212 53,759

December 31, 2016

 

Details of the balances expressed 

in foreign currency

(Euro/000) Euro JP Yen US Dollar CN Yuan HK Dollar CH Franc GB Pound KR Won CD Dollar Other Total

Cash and cash equivalent 46,082 12,367 12,741 23,004 14,946 6,107 8,017 8,980 5,282 11,077 148,603

Trade receivable 27,954 25,963 4,875 16,935 636 14 2,882 6,383 1,073 3,067 89,782

Other current assets 11,721 1,415 2,181 1,044 (21) 117 1,293 1,017 0 2,218 20,985

Other non-current assets 5,079 5,004 3,238 2,327 3,823 513 562 762 537 831 22,676

Total assets 90,836 44,749 23,035 43,310 19,384 6,751 12,754 17,142 6,892 17,193 282,046

Trade payables (80,851) (12,636) (3,572) (4,192) (3,126) (391) (980) (866) (371) (5,984) (112,969)

Borrowings (198,094) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (86) 0 (18) (198,198)

Other current payables (24,662) (1,797) (1,595) (1,433) (895) (369) (421) (826) (122) (90) (32,210)

Other non-current payables (1,347) 0 (4,759) 0 0 0 0 0 (115) (1) (6,222)

Total liabilities (304,954) (14,433) (9,926) (5,625) (4,021) (760) (1,401) (1,778) (608) (6,093) (349,599)

Total, net foreign positions (214,118) 30,316 13,109 37,685 15,363 5,991 11,353 15,364 6,284 11,100 (67,553)

December 31, 2015

 

At the reporting date, the Group had outstanding hedges for Euro 43.9 million (Euro 29.9 

million as at December 31, 2015) against receivables still to be collected and outstanding 

hedges for Euro 96.6 million (Euro 65.6 million as at December 31, 2015) against future 
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revenues. As far as the currency transactions are concerned, it should be noted that a + / -1% 

change in their exchange rates would have the following effects: 

Details of the transactions 

expressed in foreign currency

(Euro/000) JP Yen US Dollar CN Yuan HK Dollar Other

Effect of an exchange rate 

increase amounting to +1%

Revenue 1,592 1,589 1,113 583 1,856

Operating profit 724 804 566 345 1,031

Effect of an exchange rate 

decrease amounting to -1%

Revenue (1,624) (1,621) (1,135) (594) (1,894)

Operating profit (738) (820) (577) (352) (1,052)  

With reference to the provisions of IFRS 13, it should be pointed out that the category of 

financial instruments measured at fair value are mainly attributable to the hedging of exchange 

rates risk. The valuation of these instruments is based on the discounting of future cash flows 

considering the exchange rates at the reporting date (level 2 as explained in the section related 

to principles). 

 

Interest rate risk 

The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk is mainly related to cash, cash equivalents and bank 

loans and it is centrally managed by the Headquarter. 

On December 31, 2016, Moncler S.p.A. has a loan in the amount of Euro 60 million, received in 

a lump sum, payable on a half-year basis and expiring on December 31, 2017. The applicable 

interest rate is Euribor plus a market spread. 

Furthermore, at the same date, the Group had medium term unsecured loans for Euro 40.3 

million (Euro 84.7 million as at December 31, 2015). 

As at December 31, 2016, there were no interest rate hedges, because the Interest Rate Swap 

(IRS) contracts taken out in previous years have terminated. 

As far as financial debts are concerned, a fluctuation of +/- 0.25% in the interest rate would 

have led to a worsening of Euro 392 thousand in financial charges and an improvement of Euro 

379 thousand. 

 

9.2. Credit risk 

The Group has no significant concentrations of financial assets (trade receivables and other 

current assets) with a high credit risk. The Group's policies related to the management of 

financial assets are intended to reduce the risks arising from non solvency of wholesale 

customers. Sales in the retail channel are made through cash and credit cards. In addition, the 

amount of loans outstanding is constantly monitored, so that the Group's exposure to bad debts 

is not significant and the percentage of writeoffs remain low. The maximum exposure to credit 

risk for the Group at December 31, 2016 is represented by the carrying amount of trade 

receivables reported in the consolidated financial statements. 
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As far as the credit risk arising from other financial assets other than trade receivables 

(including cash and short-term bank deposits) is concerned, the theoretical credit risk for the 

Group arises from default of the counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying 

amount of financial assets recorded in the consolidated financial statements, as well as the 

nominal value of guarantees given for third parties debts or commitments indicated in note 8 of 

the Explanatory Notes. The Group’s policies limit the amount of credit exposure in different 

banks. 

 

9.3. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises from the ability to obtain financial resources at a sustainable cost in order 

for the Group to conduct its daily business operations. The factors that influence this risk are 

related to the resources generated/absorbed by operating activities, by investing and financing 

activities and by availability of funds in the financial market. 

Following the dynamic nature of the business, the Group has centralized its treasury functions 

in order to maintain the flexibility in finding financial sources and maintain the availability of 

credit lines. The procedures in place to mitigate the liquidity risk are as follows: 

• centralized treasury management and financial planning. Use of a centralized control 

system to manage the net financial position of the Group and its subsidiaries;  

• obtaining adequate credit lines to create an adequate debt structure to better use the 

liquidity provided by the credit system; 

• continuous monitoring of future cash flows based on the Group budget. 

Management believes that the financial resources available today, along with those that are 

generated by the current operations will enable the Group to achieve its objectives and to meet 

its investment needs and the repayment of its debt at the agreed upon maturity date. 

It should also be noted, with reference to the provisions of IFRS 13, financial liabilities relating 

to commitment to purchase minority interests are accounted for at fair value based on valuation 

models primarily attributable to level 3, as explained in the section related to principles. 

It is reported in the following table an analysis of the contractual maturities (including 

interests), for financial liabilities. 
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Contractual cash flows

Non derivative financial 

liabilities

Total book 

value Total

6 months or 

less

6-12 

months 1-2 years

2-3 anni 

years

3-4 anni 

years

4-5 anni 

years

more than 5 

years

(Euro/000)

Bank overdrafts 4 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0

Self-liquidating loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Financial debt to third parties 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unsecured loans 64,144 64,665 26,949 35,607 2,109 0 0 0 0

Contractual cash flows

Derivative financial liabilities
Total book 

value Total

6 months or 

less

6-12 

months 1-2 years

2-3 anni 

years

3-4 anni 

years

4-5 anni 

years

more than 5 

years

(Euro/000)

Interest rate swap hedging 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Forward contracts on exchange 

rate hedging (167) (167) 470 (637) 0 0 0 0 0

    - Outflows 2,720 2,720 1,486 1,234 0 0 0 0 0

    - Inflowsw (2,887) (2,887) (1,016) (1,871) 0 0 0 0 0  

 

9.4. Operating and capital management risks 

In the management of operating risk, the Group's main objective is to manage the risks 

associated with the development of business in foreign markets that are subject to specific laws 

and regulations. The Group has implemented guidelines in the following areas: 

• appropriate level of segregation of duties; 

• reconciliation and constant monitoring of significant transactions; 

• documentation of controls and procedures; 

• technical and professional training of employees; 

• periodic assessment of corporate risks and identification of corrective actions. 

As far as the capital management risk is concerned, the Group's objectives are aimed at the 

going concern issue in order to ensure a fair economic return to shareholders and other 

stakeholders while maintaining a good rating in the capital  debt market. The Group manages 

its capital structure and makes adjustments in line with changes in general economic conditions 

and with the strategic objectives. 

 

10. OTHER INFORMATION 

10.1. Related party transactions 

Set out below are the transactions with related parties deemed relevant for the purposes of the 

“Related-party procedure” adopted by the Group.  

The “Related-party procedure” is available on the Company’s website 

(www.monclergroup.com, under “Governance/Corporate documents”). 

Transactions and balances with consolidated companies have been eliminated during 

consolidation and are therefore not commented here. 
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During 2016, related-party transactions mainly relate to trading transactions carried out on an 

arm's length basis with the following parties: 

• Yagi Tsusho Ltd, counterparty to the transaction which led to the establishment of 

Moncler Japan Ltd., acquires finished products from Moncler Group companies (Euro 

59.4 million in 2016 and Euro 50.2 million in 2015) and then sells them to Moncler 

Japan Ltd. (Euro 67.4 million in 2016 and Euro 59.2 million in 2015) pursuant to the 

contract agreed upon the companys' establishment. 

• Gokse Tekstil Kozmetik Sanayi ic ve dis ticaret limited sirketi, company held by the 

minority share holder of Moncler Istanbul Giyim ve Tekstil Ticaret Ltd. Sti, provides 

services to that company by virtue of the contract signed at the time of incorporation of 

the company. Total costs recognized for 2016 amount to Euro 0.2 million (Euro 0.2 

million in 2015). 

• The company La Rotonda S.r.l., owned by a manager of the Moncler Group, acquires 

finished products from Industries S.p.A. and provides services to the same. Total 

revenues recognized for 2016 amount to Euro 0.6 million (Euro 0.4 million in 2015) 

and total costs recognized for 2016 amount to Euro 0.2 million (Euro 0.1 in 2015). 

• Shinsegae International Inc., counterparty to the transaction which led to the 

establishment of Moncler Shinsegae Inc., provides services to the latter pursuant to a 

contract agreed upon its establishment. Total costs recognized for 2016 amount to Euro 

0.4 (Euro 1.2 in 2015). 

Industries S.p.A., Moncler Lunettes S.r.l. and, beginning in 2014, Moncler Enfant S.r.l. adhere 

to the Parent Company Moncler S.p.A. fiscal consolidation. 

 

Compensation paid to directors, board of statutory auditors and executives with strategic 

responsibilities 

Compensation paid to the members of the Board of Directors in 2016 amounted to Euro 4,641 

thousand (Euro 3,666 thousand in 2015). 

Compensation paid to the members of the Board of Auditors in 2016 amounted to Euro 184 

thousand (Euro 190 thousand in 2015). 

In 2016 total compensation paid to executives with strategic responsibilities amounted to Euro 

2,656 thousand (Euro 2,149 thousand in 2015). 

In 2016 the costs relating to stock option plans (described in note 10.2) referring to members of 

the Board of Directors and Key management personnel amount to Euro 7,380 thousand (Euro 

3,059 thousand in 2015). 

The following tables summarize the afore-mentioned related-party transactions that took place 

during 2016 and the prior year. 
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(Euro/000) Type of relationship Note
December 

31, 2016
%

December 

31, 2015
%

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Distribution agreement a 59,446 (23.6)% 50,237 (22.3)%

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Distribution agreement a (67,356) 26.7% (59,169) 26.2%

GokseTekstil Kozmetik 

Sanayi ic ve dis ticaret 

limited sirketi

Service agreement b (223) 0.2% (223) 0.3%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade transactions c 590 0.1% 413 0.0%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade transactions d (160) 0.1% (148) 0.1%

Shinsegae International Inc.
Trade transactions b (282) 0.3% (810) 1.0%

Shinsegae International Inc.
Trade transactions d (163) 0.1% (400) 0.2%

Directors, board of 

statutory auditors and 

executives with strategic 

responsibilities

Labour services b (6,850) 7.3% (5,468) 6.9%

Executives with strategic 

responsibilities
Labour services d (631) 0.2% (537) 0.2%

Directors and executives 

with strategic 

responsibilities

Labour services e (7,380) 46.9% (3,059) 26.9%

Total (23,009) (19,164)

a effect in % based on cost of sales

b effect in % based on general and administrative expenses

c effect in % based on revenues

d effect in % based on selling expenses

e effect in % based on non recurring expenses  

(Euro/000) Type of relationship Note
December 31, 

2016
%

December 31, 

2015
%

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Trade payables a (8,049) 6.1% (8,426) 7.5%

Yagi Tsusho Ltd Trade receivables b 7,111 6.8% 6,722 7.5%

Gokse Tekstil Kozmetik 

Sanayi ic ve dis ticaret 

limited sirketi

Trade payables a 0 0.0% (19) 0.0%

Shinsegae International Inc.
Trade payables a (1) 0.0% (101) 0.1%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade receivables b 412 0.4% 291 0.3%

La Rotonda S.r.l. Trade payables a (81) 0.1% 0 0.0%

Directors, board of 

statutory auditors and 

executives with strategic 

responsibilities

Other current liabilities c (3,788) 7.5% (2,696) 8.4%

Total (4,396) (4,229)

a effect in % based on trade payables

b effect in % based on trade receivables

c effect in % based on other current liabilities  

The following tables summarize the weight of related-party trasactions on the consolidated 

financial statements as at and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

Revenue Cost of sales

Selling 

expenses

General and 

administrative 

expenses

Non recurring 

income/

(expenses)

Total related parties 590 (7,910) (954) (7,355) (7,380)

Total consolidated financial statements 1,040,311 (252,303) (312,353) (94,093) (15,738)

weight % 0.1% 3.1% 0.3% 7.8% 46.9%

Trade 

receivables Trade Payables

Other current 

liabilities

Total related parties 7,523 (8,131) (3,788)

Total consolidated financial statements 104,864 (132,586) (50,319)

weight % 7.2% 6.1% 7.5%

December 31, 2016

December 31, 2016
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Revenue Cost of sales

Selling 

expenses

General and 

administrative 

expenses

Non recurring 

income/

(expenses)

Total related parties 413 (8,932) (1,085) (6,501) (3,059)

Total consolidated financial statements 880,393 (225,495) (253,448) (79,535) (11,389)

weight % 0.0% 4.0% 0.4% 8.2% 26.9%

Trade 

receivables Trade Payables

Other current 

liabilities

Total related parties 7,013 (8,546) (2,696)

Total consolidated financial statements 89,782 (112,969) (32,210)

weight % 7.8% 7.6% 8.4%

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

 

 

10.2. Stock option plans 

The Consolidated Financial Statements at December 31, 2016 reflects the values of the Stock 

Option Plans approved in 2014 and 2015 and of the new Performance Share Plan approved in 

2016. 

With regard to stock option plans approved in 2014, please note that: 

• The Stock Option 2014-2018 plan “Top Management and Key people” provides for a 

vesting period ending with the approval of the consolidated financial statements as at 

December 31, 2016. Each beneficiary may exercise the options granted on condition 

that the specific performance goals related to Group’s consolidated EBITDA are 

achieved. The exercise price of the options is equal to Euro 10.20 and allows for the 

subscription of shares in the ratio of one ordinary share for every option exercised; 

• The The Stock Option 2014-2018 plan “Corporate Structure” provides for three 

separate tranches with a vesting period starting from the grant date of the plan until the 

approval date by the Board of Directors of the consolidated financial statements 

respectively as at December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016. Each beneficiary may exercise 

the options granted on condition that the specific performance goals related to Group’s 

consolidated EBITDA are achieved. The exercise price of the options is equal to Euro 

10.20 and allows for the subscription of shares in the ratio of one ordinary share for 

every option exercised; 

• The fair value of stock options was estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes 

method, based on the following assumptions: 

• share price at the grant date of the options Euro 13.27; 

• estimated life of the options equal to the period from the grant date to the following 

estimated exercise dates:  

o Stock Option Plan for Top Management and Key People: March 1, 2018; 
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o Stock Option Plan Structures corporate: I tranche March 1, 2017, II tranche 

August 31, 2017, III tranche March, 1 2018; 

• dividend yield 1%; 

• fair value per tranche from Euro 3.8819 to Euro 4.1597. 

• The effect of the two plans on the 2016 income statement amounted to Euro 6.9 million, 

while the effect on net equity of the exercise of the first tranche of the plan “Corporate 

Structure” amounts to Euro 0.9 million. 

As at December 31, 2016 the following options are still in circulation: 4,405,000 options for the 

Top Management Plan and Key People and 166,700 options for the Corporat Plan Structures, 

after that, during 2016, 90,266 options related to the first and second tranche of the plan 

“Corporate Structure” were exercised. 

With regard to stock option plans approved in 2015, please note that: 

• The 2015 Plan is intended for executive directors and/or Key-managers with strategic 

responsibilities employees and external consultants and other collaborators of Moncler 

S.p.A. and its subsidiaries which are considered as having a strategic importance or are 

otherwise able to make a significant contribution to achieving Group's strategic 

objectives; 

• The 2015 Plan provides for the assignment of maximum 2,548,225 options through 3 

cycles of allocation, free of charge. The options allow, under the conditions established, 

to subscribe ordinary shares of Moncler S.p.A. The first grant cycle was completed on 

May 12, 2015, with the allocation of 1,385,000 options; 

• The exercise price of the options is equal to Euro 16.34 and allows for the subscribtion 

of shares in the ratio of one ordinary share for every option exercised; 

• The 2015 Plan provides for a vesting period of three years between the allocation date 

and the initial exercise date. The option can be exercised within June 30, 2020 

maximum, for the first attribution cycle and June 30, 2021 or June 30, 2022, 

respectively, for the second and third attribution cycle; 

• Each beneficiary may exercise the options granted on condition that the specific 

performance goals related to Group’s consolidated EBITDA are achieved; 

• The fair value of 2015 Plan was estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes 

method, based on the following assumptions: 

• share price at the grant date of the options Euro 16.34; 

• estimated life of options equal to the period from the grant date to the following 

estimated exercise: May 31, 2019; 

• dividend yield 1%; 

• fair value per tranche Euro 3.2877. 
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• The effect on the income statement of 2016 of the 2015 Plan amounts to Euro 1.3 

million, which mainly includes the costs accrued during the period, calculation of which 

is based on the fair value of the plans, which takes into account the value of the share at 

the grant date, the volatility, the flow of the expected dividends, the option term and the 

risk-free rate. 

• As at December 31, 2016 the following options are still in circulation: 1,195,000 

options. 

On April 20, 2016, the shareholders meeting of Moncler approved the adoption of a stock grant 

plan entitled "2016-2018 Performance Shares Plan” (“2016 Plan”) addressed to Executive 

Directors and/or Key Managers, and/or employees, and/or collaborators, and/or external 

consultants of Moncler S.p.A. and of its subsidiaries, which have strategically relevant roles or 

are otherwise capable of making a significant contribution, with a view to pursuing the Group’s 

strategic objectives. 

The object of the Plan is the free granting of the Moncler shares in case certain Performance 

Targets are achieved at the end of the vesting period of 3 years. 

The proposed maximum number of shares serving the Plan is equal to No. 3,800,000 resulting 

from a Capital Increase and/or from the allocation of treasury shares. 

The Performance Targets will have to be assessed in compliance with the 2016-2018 approved 

business plan, and are expressed base on the earning per share index (“EPS”) of the Group in 

the Vesting Period, adjusted by the conditions of over\under performance. 

The Plan provides for a maximum of 3 cycles of attribution; the first attribution cycle ended 

with the assignment of 2,856,000 Moncler Rights. 

As at December 31, 2016 there are still in circulation 2,838,000 rights; the effect on the income 

statement of 2016 amounts to Euro 7.3 million. 

As stated by IFRS 2, these plans are defined as Equity Settled. 

For information regarding the plan, please see the company's website, www.monclergroup.com, 

in the "Governance/Shareholders’ Meeting" section. 
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10.3. Subsidiaries and minority interests 

Following are the financial information of the subsidiaries that have significant minority 

interests. 

Summary of subsidiary's 

financial information

(Euro/000) Assets Liabilities Net equity Revenues Profit/(Loss)

Profit/(Loss) 

attributable 

to minority

Ciolina Moncler SA 1,137 728 409 1,522 203 99

White Tech Sp.zo.o. 164 14 150 150 49 15

Summary of subsidiary's 

financial information

(Euro/000) Assets Liabilities Net equity Revenues Profit/(Loss)

Profit/(Loss) 

attributable 

to minority

Ciolina Moncler SA 777 484 293 1,324 28 14

White Tech Sp.zo.o. 134 28 106 118 31 9

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2016

  

Profit/(Loss) attributable to minority differs from consolidated Profit/(Loss) attributable to 

minority since the data are presented gross of intercompany eliminations. 

Cash Flow 2016 (*)

(Euro/000)
Ciolina Moncler SA White Tech Sp.zo.o.

Operating Cash Flow 327 77

Free Cash Flow 273 64

Net Cash Flow 185 62   

Cash Flow 2015 (*)

(Euro/000)
Ciolina Moncler SA White Tech Sp.zo.o.

Operating Cash Flow 203 3

Free Cash Flow 207 (2)

Net Cash Flow (108) (3)

(*) Amounts showed according to the Cash Flow Statements included in the Directors' Report   

The contribution to net income of the companies Moncler Lunettes S.r.l. and Moncler Enfant 

S.r.l., both liquidated in 2016, was negligible. 
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10.4. Significant non-recurring events and transactions 

On April 20, 2016, the Moncler Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting approved an incentive loyalty 

plan, known as "Performance Shares 2016-2018". 

The description of the incentive loyalty plans and the related costs are included in note 10.2. 

 

10.5. Atypical and/or unusual transactions 

It should be noted that during 2016 the Group did not enter into any atypical and/or unusual 

transactions. 

 

10.6. Financial instruments 

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial 

liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at 

fair value. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities 

not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

December 31, 2016

(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial assets measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - -

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 2,887 - 2,887 2 

Sub-total 2,887 - 2,887 

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables (*) 104,864 22,514 

Cash and cash equivalents (*) 243,389 -

Sub-total 348,253 22,514 -

Total 351,140 22,514 2,887  

December 31, 2015

(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial assets measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - -

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging - - -

Sub-total - - -

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables (*) 93,373 20,283 

Cash and cash equivalents (*) 148,603 -

Sub-total 241,976 20,283 -

Total 241,976 20,283 -  
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December 31, 2016

(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - - 2 

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging (2,720) - (2,720) 2 

Other financial liabilities - (73,743) (73,743) 3 

Sub-total (2,720) (73,743) (76,463)

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Trade and other payables (*) (142,331) -

Bank overdrafts (*) (4) -

Short-term bank loans (*) - -

Bank loans (62,053) (2,092) (64,145) 3 

Sub-total (204,388) (2,092) (64,145)

Total (207,108) (75,835) (140,608)  

December 31, 2015

(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - - 2 

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging (374) - (374) 2 

Other financial liabilities - (62,902) (62,902) 3 

Sub-total (374) (62,902) (63,276)

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Trade and other payables (*) (121,503) -

Bank overdrafts (*) (2,522) -

Short-term bank loans (*) (4) -

Bank loans (68,283) (64,114) (132,397) 3 

Sub-total (192,312) (64,114) (132,397)

Total (192,686) (127,016) (195,673)

(*) Such items refer to short-term financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying value is a 

reasonable approximation of fair value, which was therefore not disclosed.  

 

10.7. Fees paid to independent auditors 

Fees paid to independent auditors are summarized below: 

Audit and attestation services

(Euro unit)
Entity that has 

provided the service
Fees 2016

Audit KPMG S.p.A. 325,730                       

Network KPMG S.p.A. 210,162                       

Attestation services KPMG S.p.A. 22,840                        

Network KPMG S.p.A. 7,027                          

Other services KPMG S.p.A. 28,810                        

Network KPMG S.p.A. 124,285                       

Total 718,854
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11. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE  

No significant events occurred after the end of the period. 

 

 

 

*** 

 

 

 

The consolidated financial statements, comprised of the consolidated income statement, 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial position, 

consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and 

explinatory notes to the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the 

financial position and the results of operations and cash flows and corresponds to the 

accounting records of the Parent Company and the companies included in the consolidation. 

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Moncler S.p.A. 

 

The Chairman 

Remo Ruffini 
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Moncler S.p.A. 
Registered office: Via Stendhal 47, MILAN – ITALY 

Share capital: Euro 50,046,395.20 fully paid-in – Registration number CCIAA: MI-1763158 
Tax code: 04642290961 
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MONCLER S.P.A. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Income statement

(Euro) Notes 2016 2015

Revenue 3.1 173,765,849 173,660,396 147,114,040 146,973,991

General and administrative expenses 3.2 (18,018,601) (3,646,955) (14,123,060) (3,810,634)

Advertising and promotion expenses 3.3 (31,045,053) (64,938) (27,439,689) (236,994)

Non recurring income/(expenses) 3.4 (4,865,769) (3,543,838) (2,489,733) (1,837,171)

Operating result 119,836,426 103,061,558

Financial income 3.6 91,724 10,740

Financial expenses 3.6 (666,946) (160,370) (1,890,570) (845,600)

Result before taxes 119,261,204 101,181,728

Income taxes 3.7 (37,716,715) (24,279,628)

Net result 81,544,489 76,902,100

of which related 

parties (note 8.1)

of which related 

parties (note 8.1)
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Statement of comprehensive income Note December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

(Euro)

Net profit (loss) for the period 81,544,489 76,902,100

Gains/(Losses) on fair value of hedge derivatives 4.14 0 5,653

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit 

or loss 0 5,653

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on pension funds 4.14 (97,462) 65,522

Items that will never be reclassified to profit or 

loss (97,462) 65,522

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax
(97,462) 71,175

Total Comprehensive income/(loss) 81,447,027 76,973,275
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Statement of financial position

(Euro) Notes
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

Brands and other intangible assets - net 4.1 226,219,938 226,544,658

 Property, plant and equipment - net 4.3 2,714 830,697

Investments in subsidiaries 4.4 233,115,832 222,534,374

 Deferred tax assets 4.5 1,587,848 1,967,548

Non-current assets 460,926,332 451,877,277

 Trade accounts receivable 4.6 223,485 66,756

 Intra-group accounts receivable 4.6 53,943,476 53,943,476 48,533,479 48,533,479

 Income taxes 4.13 0 0

 Other current assets 4.8 3,306,874 2,088,753

 Other current assets intra-group 4.8 0 0 40,000 40,000

 Cash and cash equivalent 4.7 1,486,546 788,241

Current assets 58,960,381 51,517,229

Total assets 519,886,713 503,394,506

 Share capital 4.14 50,042,945 50,024,892

 Premium reserve 4.14 109,186,923 108,284,263

 Other reserve 4.14 132,952,057 88,300,525

 Net result 4.14 81,544,489 76,902,100

Equity 373,726,414 323,511,780

 Long-term borrowings 4.12 0 23,972,007

 Employees pension fund 4.11 658,089 441,700

 Deferred tax liabilities 4.5 64,109,707 63,638,389

Non-current liabilities 64,767,796 88,052,096

 Short-term borrowings 4.12 23,972,007 23,939,230

 Intra-group short-term borrowings 4.12 10,398,723 10,398,723 22,802,107 22,802,107

 Trade accounts payable 4.9 18,643,123 14,718,214

 Intra-group accounts payable 4.9 362,727 362,727 410,844 410,844

 Income taxes 4.13 1,875,111 14,895,250

 Other current liabilities 4.10 4,126,676 2,280,956 3,363,140 1,907,145

 Other current liabilities  intra-group 4.10 22,014,136 22,014,136 11,701,845 11,701,845

Current liabilities 81,392,503 91,830,630

Total liabilities and equity 519,886,713 503,394,506

of which 

related parties 

(note 8.1)

of which 

related parties 

(note 8.1)
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Statement of changes in equity  Other reserves 

 IFRS 2 reserve 

(Euro) Notes

Shareholders' equity at January 1, 2015 4.14 50,000,000 107,039,683 10,000,000 (118,825) 4,522,278 33,056,793 64,175,546 268,675,475

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 0 0 0 64,175,546 (64,175,546) 0

Share capital and reserves increase 24,892 1,244,580 0 0 0 0 0 1,269,472

Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 (30,013,645) 0 (30,013,645)

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 71,175 6,607,203 0 0 6,678,378

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 76,902,100 76,902,100

Shareholders' equity at December 31, 2015 4.14 50,024,892 108,284,263 10,000,000 (47,650) 11,129,481 67,218,694 76,902,100 323,511,780

Shareholders' equity at January 1, 2016 4.14 50,024,892 108,284,263 10,000,000 (47,650) 11,129,481 67,218,694 76,902,100 323,511,780

Allocation of Last Year Result 0 0 300,000 0 0 76,602,100 (76,902,100) 0

Share capital and reserves increase 18,053 902,660 0 0 0 0 0 920,713

Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dividends 0 0 0 0 0 (34,882,539) 0 (34,882,539)

Other movements in Equity 0 0 0 (97,462) 15,530,151 (12,800,718) 0 2,631,971

Result of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 81,544,489 81,544,489

Shareholders' equity at December 31, 2016 4.14 50,042,945 109,186,923 10,300,000 (145,112) 26,659,632 96,137,537 81,544,489 373,726,414

 Retained 

earnings 

 Result of the 

period 
 Net Equity  Share capital 

 Premium 

reserve 

 Legal 

reserve 

 Other 

comprehensive 

income 
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Statement of cash flow

(Euro)

Cash flow from operating activities

Net result of the period 81,544,489 76,902,100

Depreciation and amortization 1,008,794 970,056

Impairment of investments (85,182) 0

Net financial (income)/expenses 660,405 1,643,937

Other non cash (income)/expenses 4,658,429 2,307,903

Income tax expenses 37,716,715 24,279,628

Changes in trade receivables - (Increase)/Decrease (5,566,726) (5,409,997) (48,208,453) (48,209,673)

Changes in trade payables - Increase/(Decrease) 3,876,792 (48,117) (414,971) (1,023,050)

Changes in other current assets/liabilities (459,635) 373,811 (230,333) 458,828

Cash flow generated/(absorbed) from operating activities 123,354,081 57,249,867

Interest paid (606,176) (1,573,441)

Interest received 1,927 10,740

Income tax paid (39,158,784) (26,958,214)

Changes in other non-current assets/liabilities 129,276 59,454

 Net cash flow from operating activities (a) 83,720,324 28,788,406

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets (599,649) (2,330,868)

Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible fixed assets 743,558 0

Investments 0 2,578,449

 Net cash flow from investing activities (b) 143,909 247,581

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings (24,000,000) (12,000,000)

Changes in intercompany short term borrowings (12,403,384) (12,403,384) 11,964,424 11,964,424

Transaction related to equity (12,800,718) 0

Dividends paid to shareholders (34,882,539) (30,013,645)

Share Capital and reserves increase 920,713 1,269,472

 Net cash flow from financing activities (c) (83,165,928) (28,779,749)

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a)+(b)+(c) 
698,305 256,238

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 788,241 532,003

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 698,305 256,238

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,486,546 788,241

2016 2015

of which 

related parties 

(note 8.1)

of which 

related parties 

(note 8.1)

 

 

 

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

The Chairman 

Remo Ruffini 



SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

126  ANNUAL REPORT AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 – MONCLER  

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

1.1. Moncler S.p.A. 

Moncler S.p.A. (the “Company” or “Moncler”) is a company established and domiciled in Italy, 

with its registered office located at Via Stendhal 47 Milan, Italy, and registration number of 

04642290961. 

It is the parent company for the Moncler Group (hereinafter referred to as the "Group") 

comprising Industries S.p.A., the Italian subsidiary, and 30 other subsidiaries. 

The Company's principal activities are the study, design, production and distribution of 

clothing for men, women and children and related accessories under the Moncler brand name. 

The Moncler Group companies run their businesses in accordance with the guidelines and the 

strategies set up by Moncler’s Board of Directors. 

The Company also prepares the consolidated financial statements and the Management Report 

in a single document as permitted by. 40/2 bis, letter. B Legislative Decree 127/91. 

 

1.2. Basis for the preparation of the separate financial statements 

1.2.1. Relevant accounting principles 

The 2016 separate financial statements (“financial statements”) have been prepared in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") issued by the 

International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and endorsed by the European Union. 

IFRS also includes all International Accounting Standards ("IAS") and interpretations of the 

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC"), previously known as 

the Standing Interpretations Committee ("SIC"). 

The financial statements include the statement of financial position, the income statement, the 

statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash 

flows and the explanatory notes to the financial statements. 

 

1.2.2. Presentation of the financial statements 

The Company presents its income statement by destination, the method that is considered most 

representative for the business at hand. This method is in fact consistent with the internal 

reporting and management of the business. 

With reference to the statement of financial position, a basis of presentation has been chosen 

which makes a distinction between current and non-current assets and liabilities, in accordance 

with the provisions of paragraph 60 and thereafter of IAS 1. 

The statement of cash flows is prepared under the indirect method. 
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1.2.3. Basis for measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the 

measurement of certain financial instruments (i.e. derivative measured at fair value in 

accordance with IAS 39) and on a going concern basis. 

The financial statements are presented in Euro thousand, which is the functional currency of 

the markets where the Company mainly operates. 

The explanatory notes have been prepared in thousands of Euros unless stated otherwise. 

 

1.2.4. Use of estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements and the related explanatory notes in conformity 

with IFRS requires that management make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 

reporting date. The actual results could differ from those estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically and any variations are 

reflected in the income statement in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 

affects only that period or even in subsequent periods if the revision affects both current and 

future periods. In the event that management’s estimate and judgment had a significant impact 

on the amounts recognized in the financial statements or in case that there is a risk of future 

adjustments on the amounts recognized for assets and liabilities in the period immediately after 

the reporting date, the following notes will include the relevant information.  

The estimates pertain mainly to the impairment of non-current assets (brand and investments) 

and the recoverability of deferred tax assets. Following is a brief description of these captions. 

Recoverable amount of non-current assets with indefinite useful lives and investments 

("impairment") 

Management periodically reviews non-current assets, assets held for sale and investments in 

subsidiaries for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 

amount may not be recoverable. When a review for impairment is conducted, the recoverable 

amount is estimated based on the present value of future cash flows expected to derive from the 

asset or from the sale of the asset itself, at a suitable discount rate. 

When the recoverable amount of a non-current asset is less than its carrying amount, an 

impairment loss is recognized immediately in the income statement and the carrying amount is 

reduced to its recoverable amount determined based on value-in-use calculation or its sale’s 

value in an arm’s length transaction, with reference to the most recent Group business plan. 

Recoverability of deferred tax assets  

The Company is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Judgment is required in 

determining the provision for income taxes in each territory. The Company recognizes deferred 

tax assets when it is expected that they will be realised within a period that is consistent with 

management estimate and business plans. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

The accounting principles set out below have been applied consistently for fiscal year 2016 and 

the prior year. 

 

2.1. Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition or manufacturing cost, not revalued net 

of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses ("impairment"). Cost includes original 

purchase price and all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition 

for its intended use. 

 

Depreciation 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated and recognized in the income 

statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as reported in the following 

table: 

Category Depreciation period

Land No depreciation

Buildings From 25 to 33 years

Plant and equipment From 8 to 12 years

Fixtures and fittings From 5 to 10 years

Electronic machinery and equipmenFrom 3 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements Lower between lease period and useful life of improvements

Other fixed assets
Depending on market conditions generally within the expected utility to the entity

 

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is 

reasonably certain that the Group will take ownership of the asset by the end of the lease term.  

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reporting period and 

adjusted if appropriate. 

 

Gain/Losses on the disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Gains and losses on the disposal of property, plant and equipment represent the difference 

between the net proceeds and net book value at the date of sale. Disposals are accounted for 

when the relevant transaction becomes unconditional. 
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2.2. Intangible assets 

Brands 

Separately acquired brands are shown at historical cost. Brands acquired in a business 

combination are recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. 

Brands have a indefinite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment. Brands 

are not amortized but subject to impairment test performed annually or more frequently if 

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

For further details please refer to note 2.5 "Impairment of non-financial assets." 

 

Intangible assets with a definite useful life 

Software (including licenses and separately identifiable external development costs) is 

capitalized as intangible asset at purchase price, plus any directly attributable cost of preparing 

that asset for its intended use. Software and other intangible assets that are acquired by the 

Group and have definite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and 

accumulated impairment losses. 

 

Ammortization of intangible assets with a definite useful life 

Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over their 

estimated useful lives as described in the following table: 

Category Depreciation period

License rights Based on market conditions within the licence period or legal limits to use the assets

Software From 3 to 5 years

Other intangible assets Based on market conditions generally within the period of control over the asset
 

 

2.3. Non-current assets available for sale and discontinued operations 

Non-current assets available for sale and discontinued operations are classified as available for 

sale when their values are recoverable mainly through a probable sale transaction. In such 

conditions, they are valued at the lower of their carrying value or fair value, net of cost to sell if 

their value is mainly recoverable through a sale transaction instead of continued use. 

Discontinued operations are operations that: 

• include a separate line of business or a different geographical area; 

• are part of a single coordinated plan for the disposal of a separate major line of business 

or geographical area of activity; 

• consist of subsidiaries acquired exclusively for the purpose of being sold. 
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In the income statement, non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups that meet the 

requirements of IFRS 5 to be defined as "discontinued operations", are presented in a single 

caption that includes both gains and losses, as well as losses or gains on disposal and the related 

tax effect. The comparative period is subsequently restated in accordance with IFRS 5. 

As far as the financial position is concerned, non-current assets held for sale and disposal 

groups that meet the requirements of IFRS 5 are reclassified as current assets and liabilities in 

the period in which such requirements arise. The comparative financial statements are not 

restated nor reclassified. 

 

2.4. Investments 

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and others are accounted for as follows:  

• at cost; or  

• in accordance with IAS 39.  

The Company recognizes dividends from subsidiaries, associates and others in its income 

statement when the right to receive such dividends has materialized. 

 

2.5. Impairment of non-financial assets 

On an annual basis, the Company tests for impairment property, plant and equipment and 

intangible assets with a definite useful life. Whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate 

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, an impairment loss is recognized for the 

amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  

Assets with an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually or 

more frequently for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the 

carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

When the recoverable amount for individual asset cannot be reliably estimated, the Company 

determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. The 

recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. The 

Group determines the value in use as the present value of future cash flows expected to be 

derived from the asset or from the cash-generating unit, gross of tax effects, by applying an 

appropriate discount rate that reflects market time value of money and the risks inherent to the 

asset. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds 

its recoverable amount. 

With the exception of impairment losses recognized on goodwill, when the circumstances that 

led to the loss no longer exist, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 

amount and cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had there 

been no loss in value. The reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the 

income statement. 
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2.6. Financial instruments 

Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value when the entity becomes a party to a 

contractual obligation of the financial instrument. A financial instrument is no longer 

recognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows has expired or when the Company is no 

longer exposed to that risk. A financial liability is no longer recognized when the obligation 

specified in the contract is canceled, expired or voided. 

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts 

receivable, accounts payable, other current and non-current assets and liabilities, investments, 

borrowings and derivative financial instruments. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term deposits held with banks and most 

liquid assets that are readily convertible into cash and that have insignificant risk of change in 

value. Bank overdrafts are recorded under current liabilities on the Company’s statement of 

financial position. 

 

Trade receivables and other current and non-current receivables 

Trade and other receivables generated when the Company provides money, goods or services 

directly to a third party are classified as current assets, except for items with maturity dates 

greater than twelve months after the reporting date. 

Receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less the 

allowance for doubtful accounts. A provision for doubtful account is recorded when there is 

objective evidence that the value of the claim will not be recovered. The amount of the provision 

is recognized in the income statement. 

 

Trade payables and other current and non-current payables  

Trade and other payables arise when the Company acquires money, goods or services directly 

from a supplier. They are included in current liabilities, except for items with maturity dates 

greater than twelve months after the reporting date. 

Payables are stated, at initial recognition, at fair value, which usually comprises the cost of the 

transaction, inclusive of transaction costs. Subsequently, they are stated at amortized cost using 

the effective interest method. 

 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities, excluding derivatives, are recognized initially at fair value which represents 

the amount at which the asset was bought in a current transaction between willing parties, and 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Financial liabilities 
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are classified as non-current if the Company has an unconditional right to defer payments of at 

least twelve months from the reporting date. 

 

Derivative instruments 

The Company uses derivative instruments to hedge against exchange rate and interest rate risks. 

In order to reduce interest rate risk, the Company hedges part of the fixed-rate financial 

liabilities through an Interest Rate Swap (IRS). In accordance with IAS 39, derivative 

instruments qualify for hedge accounting only if at the inception there is a formal designation 

and documentation of the hedging relationship, the hedge is expected to be highly effective and 

the effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured throughout the financial reporting 

periods for which the hedge was designated. The company documents the hedging relationship 

between the derivative and the financial instrument.  

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value at acquisition date and are 

subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The subsequent gain or loss recognition depends on 

whether the instrument itself is defined as a hedges and the nature of the hedged item. 

 

Fair value hedge  

A derivative instrument is designated as fair value hedge when it hedges the exposure to changes 

in fair value of a recognized asset or liability, that is attributable to a particular risk and could 

affect profit or loss. The gain or loss on the hedged item, attributable to the hedged risk, adjusts 

the carrying amount of the hedged item and is recognized in the income statement. 

 

Cash flow hedge 

A derivative instrument is designated as cash flow hedge when it hedges the exposure to 

variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized 

asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect profit or loss. The 

portion of gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is 

recognized in equity within other comprehensive income. The cumulative gain or loss is 

reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period in which the asset acquired or 

liability assumed affects profit or loss. Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is not an 

effective hedge is recognized immediately in the income statement.  In the event that the hedge 

expires or is terminated or no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting but the forecast 

transaction has not yet occurred, the cumulative gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive 

income from the period when the hedge was effective remains separately in equity and is 

recognized in the income statement in the same period during which the hedged forecast 

transaction affects profit or loss.  
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When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss 

recognised in other comprehensive income from the period when the hedge was effective is 

reclassified immediately in the income statement. 

 

2.7. Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits, such as wages, salaries, social security contributions, paid leave 

and annual leave due within twelve months of the statement of financial position date and all 

other fringe benefits are recognised in the year in which the service is rendered by the employee.  

Benefits granted to employees which are payable on or after the termination of employment 

through defined benefit and contribution plans are recognised over the vesting period. 

 

Defined benefit schemes  

Defined benefit schemes are retirement plans determined based on employees’ remuneration 

and years of service. 

The Company’s obligation to contribute to employees’ benefit plans and the related current 

service cost is determined by using an actuarial valuation defined as the projected unit credit 

method. The cumulative net amount of all actuarial gains and losses are recognised in equity 

within other comprehensive income. 

With reference to defined benefit plans, the increase in present value of the defined benefit 

obligation for employee service in prior periods (past service cost) is accounted as an expense on 

a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. 

The amount recognised as a liability under the defined benefit plans is the present value of the 

related obligation, taking into consideration expenses to be recognised in future periods for 

employee service in prior periods. 

 

Defined contribution schemes  

Contribution made to a defined contribution plan is recognised as an expense in the income 

statement in the period in which the employees render the related service.  

Up to December 31, 2006 Italian employees were eligible to defined benefit schemes referred as 

post-employment benefit (“TFR”). With the act n. 296 as of December 27, 2006 and 

subsequent decrees (“Pension Reform”) issued in early 2007, the rules and the treatment of 

TFR scheme were changed. Starting from contribution vested on or after January 1, 2007 and 

not yet paid at the reporting date, referring to entities with more than 50 employees, Italian 

post-employment benefits is recognised as a defined contribution plan. The contribution vested 

up to December 31, 2006 is still recognised as a defined benefit plan and accounted for using 

actuarial assumptions. 
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2.8. Share- based payments 

The fair value at grant date of the incentives granted to employees in the form of share-based 

payments that are equity settled is usually included in expenses, with a matching increase in 

equity, over the period during which the employees obtain the incentives rights. The amount 

recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of incentives for which the 

continued service conditions are met and the achievement of non-market conditions, so that the 

final amount recognized as an expense is based on the number of incentives that fulfill these 

conditions at the vesting date. In case the incentives granted as share-based payments whose 

conditions are not to be considered to maturity, the fair value at the grant date of the share-

based payment is measured to reflect such conditions. With reference to the non-vesting 

conditions, any differences between amounts at the grant date and the actual amounts will not 

have any impact on the financial statements. 

The fair value of the amount payable to employees related to share appreciation rights, settled 

in cash, is recognized as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities over the period 

during which the employees unconditionally become entitled to receive the payment. The 

liability is measured at year-end and the settlement date based on the fair value of the share 

appreciation rights. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognized in profit or loss 

for the year. 

 

2.9. Provisions for risks and charges 

Provisions for risks and charges are recognised when the Company has a present legal or 

constructive obligation as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation and where the amount of the obligation can be 

reliably estimated. 

Changes in estimates are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they occur. 

 

2.10. Revenue recognition 

Revenues are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 

transactions will flow to the Company and the amount can be measured reliably. Revenue, 

which is stated excluding value added tax and other sales related taxes, is the amount receivable 

for goods supplied less returns, trade discounts and allowances. Royalties received from licensee 

are accrued as earned on the basis of the terms of the relevant royalty agreement which is 

typically based on sales volumes. 
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2.11. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are recognized on an accrual basis taking into consideration interest accrued on 

the net carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities using the effective interest rate 

method. 

 

2.12. Taxation 

Tax expense recognised in the consolidated income statement represents the aggregate amount 

related to current tax and deferred tax.  

Current tax is determined in accordance with enforced rules established by local tax authorities. 

Current taxes are recognised in the consolidated income statement for the period, except to the 

extent that the tax arises from transactions or events which are recognised directly either in 

equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based on temporary taxable or deductible 

differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in 

the Company’s financial statements. Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset 

when income taxes are levied by the same tax authority and when there is a legally enforceable 

right to offset the amounts. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined using tax rates that have been enacted by the 

reporting date and are expected to be enforced when the related deferred income tax asset is 

realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not 

discounted. 

Deferred tax assets recognised on tax losses and on deductible differences are recognised to the 

extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the 

temporary differences can be utilised. 

 

2.13. Foreign currency 

The amounts included in the financial statements of each Group company are prepared using 

the currency of the country in which the company conducts its business. 

Foreign currency transactions 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate in effect at the transaction date. 

The assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated 

at the exchange rate prevailing at that date. Exchange differences arising from the conversion or 

settlement of these items due to different rates used from the time of initial recognition are 

recorded in the income statement. 
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2.14. Fair value 

IFRS 13 is the only point of reference for the fair value measurement and related disclosures 

when such an assessment is required or permitted by other standards. Specifically, the principle 

defines fair value as the consideration received for the sale of an asset or the amount paid to 

settle a liability in a regular transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

In addition, the new standard replaces and provides for additional disclosures required in 

relation to fair value measurements by other accounting standards, including IFRS 7. 

IFRS 13 establishes a hierarchy that classifies within different levels the inputs used in the 

valuation techniques necessary to measure fair value. The levels, presented in a hierarchical 

order, are as follows: 

• level 1: Fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities; 

• level 2: it Fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within 

Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); 

• level 3: Fair values measured using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 

observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs). 

 

2.15. Accounting standards and recently published interpretations 

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations effective from January 1, 2016 

Improvements to IFRS (2010-2012 cycle) 

This document introduces amendments to IFRS 2 – Share-based Payment (new definitions of a 

vesting condition and a market condition and additional definitions of a performance condition 

and a service condition), IFRS 3 – Business Combinations (clarifications of certain aspects 

regarding the classification and measurement of contingent consideration, with the resulting 

amendments to IAS 39 and IAS 37), IFRS 8 – Operating Segments (new disclosure 

requirements are introduced for segment aggregation and clarifications are provided on the 

reconciliation of total segment assets), IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement (clarifications on 

short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates), IAS 16 – Property, Plant and 

Equipment and IAS 38 – Intangible Assets (a clarification that if the revaluation model is used, 

adjustments to accumulated depreciation or amortisation are not always proportional to the 

adjustment of the gross carrying amount) and IAS 24 – Related-party Disclosures (clarifications 

on management entities and the relevant disclosures required). 

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (amendments to IAS 19) 

The aim of this amendment to IAS 19 is to enable entities to simplify their accounting for 
defined benefit plans if the contributions made by employees or third parties satisfy specific 
requirements. 
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Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations (amendments to IFRS 11) 

In May 2014, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 11 - Joint arrangements: Accounting for 
acquisitions of interests in joint operations which clarifies the accounting for acquisitions of an 
interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business. 

Agriculture: bearer plants (amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41) 

This amendment introduces the possibility of accounting for bearer plants under IAS 16 rather 
than under IAS 41. 

Clarification on acceptable methods of depreciation (amendments to IAS 16 and to IAS 38) 

In May 2014, the IASB issued an amendment to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment and to 

IAS 38 – Intangible Assets. The IASB has clarified that the use of revenue-based methods to 

calculate the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated by an 

activity that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the consumption of 

the economic benefits embodied in the asset. 

The IASB also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to be an inappropriate basis for 
measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible asset. This 
presumption, however, can be rebutted in certain limited circumstances. 

Improvements to IFRS (2012-2014 cycle) 

In September 2014 the IASB issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle, a 

series of amendments to IFRSs in response to issues raised mainly on IFRS 5 - Non-current 

assets held for sale and discontinued operations, on the changes of method of disposal, on IFRS 

7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures on the servicing contracts, on the IAS 19 - Employee 

Benefits, on the discount rate determination. 

Disclosure initiative (amendments to IAS 1) 

In December 2014 the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements 

as part of its major initiative to improve presentation and disclosure in financial reports. The 

amendments make clear that materiality applies to the whole of financial statements and that 

the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of financial disclosures. 

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that companies should use professional judgment in 

determining whereand in what order information is presented in the financial disclosures.  

Equity method in the separate financial statements (amendments to IAS 27 (2011)) 

This document introduces the option of using the equity method even in the separate financial 

statements.  

The adoption of the interpretations and standards did not have significant impact on the 

consolidated financial statements of the Group. 
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New standards and interpretations not yet effective and not early adopted by the Group 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when 
revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 
Revenue, IAS 11  Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.  
IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early 
adoption permitted. 
 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
 
In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board issued the final version of IFRS 9 

Financial Instruments.  

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early 

adoption permitted. The Group currently plans to apply IFRS 9 initially on January 1, 2018.  
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In addition, at the date of these financial statements the competent bodies of the European 

Union had not yet completed their endorsement process for the following accounting standards 

and amendments: 

Document title Issue date by IASB Effective from 

Standards   

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 2014  Not defined 

IFRS 16 Leases January 2016 January 1, 2019 

Interpretations   

IFRIC Interpretation 22 - Foreign Currency 
Transactions and Advance Consideration 

December 2016 
January 1, 2018 

Amendments   

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or 
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture 

September 2014 Not defined 

Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax 
Assets for Unrealised Losses 

January 2016  January 1, 2017 

Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure Initiative January 2016  January 1, 2017 

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers 

April 2016 January 1, 2018 

Amendments to IFRS 2: Classification and 
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions 

June 2016  
January 1, 2018 

Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts 

September 2016 
January 1, 2018 

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards (2014-2016 
Cycle) 

December 2016 

January 1, 2017  

January 1, 2018 

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 
40) 

December 2016 
January 1, 2018 
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3. COMMENTS ON THE STATEMENT OF INCOME 

3.1. Revenue 

The company's revenues mainly include royalty income from the use of trademarks, 

management fees and contributions for the provision of marketing services performed on behalf 

of Group companies.  

The increase of Euro 26,652 thousand when compared to the prior year is due to greater 

business volume. 

 

3.2. General and administrative expenses 

General and administrative expenses primarily include designing and product development 

expenses in the amount of Euro 5,882 thousand (Euro 2,239 thousand in 2015), the personnel 

expenses of other functions in the amount of Euro 3,990 thousand (Euro 3,156 thousand in 

2015), legal, financial and administrative expenses in the amount of Euro 1,734 thousand 

(Euro 1,367 thousand in 2015), directors' fees in the amount of Euro 4,056 thousand (Euro 

3,656 thousand in 2015), auditing and attestation service, statutory auditors expenses, costs for 

supervisory body and internal audit in the amount of Euro 416 thousand (Euro 474 thousand 

in 2015). 

 

3.3. Advertising expenses 

Advertising expenses amount to Euro 31,045 thousand (Euro 27,440 thousand in 2015) and 

are mostly made up of expenses related to media-plan and trade shows. 

 

3.4. Non recurring income and expenses 

The caption non recurring income and expenses for 2016 (Euro 4,866 thousand) includes the 

costs incurred for the stock option plans and performance shares approved by the Shareholders’ 

Meeting of Moncler on February 28, 2014, on April 23, 2015 and on April 20, 2016 (Euro 

2,490 thousand in 2015). 

The description of the incentive loyalty schemes and the related costs are included in note 8.2. 
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3.5. Personnel expenses, depreciaton and amortization 

At December 31, 2016 the Company has 45 employees (38 at December 31, 2015).  

The total personnel expenses, included under general and administrative expenses, amounted to 

Euro 4,982 thousand (Euro 4,026 thousand in 2015) including social security contribution of 

Euro 1,014 thousand (Euro 819 thousand in 2015) and leaving indemnity expenses of Euro 

177 thousand (Euro 272 thousand in 2015). 

In 2015 the depreciation and amortization amount to Euro 1,009 thousand (Euro 970 thousand 

in 2015). 

 

3.6. Financial income and expenses 

The caption is broken down as follows: 

(Euro/000) 2016 2015

Interest income and other financial income 2 11

Dividends 0 0

Foreign currency differences - positive 5 0

Gain from investments 85 0

Total financial income 92 11

Interests expenses and bank charges (667) (1,655)

Foreign currency differences - negative 0 (236)

Total financial expenses (667) (1,891)

Total net (575) (1,880)  

The caption interest expenses and bank charges decreased compared to the previous year by 

Euro 988 due to the normal amortization plan. 

In 2016 and 2015 the company has not received dividends. 

The caption gain from investments is referred to Moncler Lunettes S.r.l. liquidation. 

Please see note 4.12 for additional information. 
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3.7. Income tax 

The tax impact on the income statement is detailed as follows: 

(Euro/000) 2016 2015

Current income taxes (36,845) (31,215)

Deferred tax (income) expenses (872) 6,935

Income statement (37,717) (24,280)  

The amount of deferred tax in 2015 reflected the reduction of the tax rate expected at the time 

of potential reversal following the change introduced by the Stability Law of December 28, 

2015. 

The reconciliation between the theoretical tax burden by applying the theoretical rate of the 

parent company, and the effective tax burden is shown in the following table: 

Reconciliation theoretic-effective tax rate

Taxable 

Amount 

2016

Tax Amount 

2016

Tax rate 

2016

Taxable 

Amount 

2015

Tax 

Amount 

2015

Tax rate 

2015

(Euro/000)

Profit before tax 119,261 101,182

Income tax using the Company's theoretic tax rate (32,797) 27.5% (27,825) 27.5%

Temporary differences (5) (0.0)% (68) 0.1%

Permanent differences 32 0.0% (7) 0.0%

Other differences (4,947) (4.1)% 3,620 (3.6)%

Income tax at effective tax rate (37,717) 31.6% (24,280) 24.0%  

The caption other differences in 2016 mainly include the IRAP current. 
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4. COMMENTS ON THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

 

4.1. Brands and other intangible assets 

 

Brands and other intangible assets 2015

(Euro/000)

Gross value

Accumulated 

depreciation and 

impairment

Net value Net value

Brands 223,900 0 223,900 223,900

Software 496 (459) 37 93

Other intangible assets 4,650 (2,405) 2,245 2,552

Assets in progress 38 0 38 0

Total 229,084 (2,864) 226,220 226,545

2016

 

Intangible assets changes for the years 2016 and 2015 are shown in the following tables: 

As at December 31, 2016 

Gross value Brands and other 

intangible assets

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2016 223,900 496 4,091 0 228,487

Acquisitions 0 0 559 38 597

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0

Impairment 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2016 223,900 496 4,650 38 229,084

Accumulated amortization Brands 

and other intangible assets

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2016 0 (403) (1,539) 0 (1,942)

Depreciation 0 (56) (866) 0 (922)

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2016 0 (459) (2,405) 0 (2,864)

TotalBrands Software
Other intangible 

assets

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

Brands Software
Other intangible 

assets

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

Total
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As at December 31, 2015 

Gross value Brands and other 

intangible assets

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2015 223,900 444 1,775 37 226,156

Acquisitions 0 52 2,279 0 2,331

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0

Impairment 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 37 (37) 0

December 31, 2015 223,900 496 4,091 0 228,487

Accumulated amortization Brands 

and other intangible assets

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2015 0 (327) (748) 0 (1,075)

Depreciation 0 (76) (791) 0 (867)

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2015 0 (403) (1,539) 0 (1,942)

TotalBrands

Software
Other intangible 

assets

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

TotalBrands

Software
Other intangible 

assets

Assets in 

progress and 

advances

 

The increase in the caption other intangible assets mainly refer to the brand registration 

expenses. 

 

4.2. Impairment of intangible fixed assets with an indefinite useful life 

The Moncler brand, which has an indefinite useful life, has not been amortized, but has been 

tested for impairment by management.  

The impairment test on the brand was performed by comparing its carrying value with that 

derived from the discounted cash flow method applying the Royalty Relief Method, based on 

which the cash flows are linked to the recognition of a royalty percentage applied to the 

revenues that the brand is able to generate. 

For the 2016 valuation, the expected cash flows and revenues were derived from the Business 

Plan 2016-2018 approved by the Board of Directors on December 16, 2015, from the Budget 

2017 approved by the Board of Directors on December 15, 2016 and from the projection on 

year 2019 of the main assumptions underlying the aforementioned Business Plan. 

The "g" rate used was 2%. 

The discount rate was calculated using the weighted average cost of capital (" WACC "), by 

weighting the expected rate of return on invested capital, net of hedging costs from a sample of 

companies within the same industry. The calculation took into account fluctuation in the 

market as compared to the previous year and the resulting impact on interest rates. The cost of 

capital (WACC) was calculated at 8.30%. 

The results of the sensitivity analysis indicate that the carrying amount of the Moncler brand is 

in line with the benchmark with a “g” rate = 0% and WACC = 18.43%. 
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4.3. Property, plant and equipment 

 

Property, plant and equipment 2015

(Euro/000)

Gross value

Accumulated 

depreciation and 

impairment

Net value Net value

Land and buildings 0 0 0 830

Plant and Equipment 5 (5) 0 0

Fixtures and fittings 0 0 0 0

Leasehold improvements 7 (7) 0 0

Other fixed assets 138 (135) 3 1

Total 150 (147) 3 831

2016

 

The changes in property, plant and equipment from for 2016 and 2015 is included in the 

following tables: 

As at December 31, 2016 

Gross value Property, plant and 

equipment

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2016 3,358 175 1,142 7 145 4,827

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0

Acquisitions 0 0 0 0 3 3

Disposals (3,358) (170) (1,142) 0 (10) (4,680)

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2016 0 5 0 7 138 150

Accumulated depreciation

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2016 (2,528) (175) (1,142) (7) (144) (3,996)

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0

Depreciation (86) 0 0 0 (1) (87)

Disposals 2,614 170 1,142 0 10 3,936

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2016 0 (5) 0 (7) (135) (147)

Total

Land and 

buildings

Plant and 

Equipment

Fixtures and 

fittings

Leasehold 

improvements

Other fixed 

assets
Total

Land and 

buildings

Plant and 

Equipment

Fixtures and 

fittings

Leasehold 

improvements

Other fixed 

assets
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As at December 31, 2015 

Gross value Property, plant and 

equipment

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2015 3,358 175 1,142 7 145 4,827

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0

Acquisitions 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2015 3,358 175 1,142 7 145 4,827

Accumulated depreciation and 

impairment PPE

(Euro/000)

January 1, 2015 (2,433) (175) (1,139) (7) (139) (3,893)

Discontinued operations 0 0 0 0 0 0

Depreciation (95) 0 (3) 0 (5) (103)

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements, including transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 31, 2015 (2,528) (175) (1,142) (7) (144) (3,996)

Total
Land and 

buildings

Plant and 

Equipment

Fixtures and 

fittings

Leasehold 

improvements

Other fixed 

assets

Total
Land and 

buildings

Plant and 

Equipment

Fixtures and 

fittings

Leasehold 

improvements

Other fixed 

assets

 

The decrease of property, plant and equipment in 2016 is mainly due to the disposal of the 

building located in Carasco (GE). 

 

4.4. Investments in subsidiaries 

Investments in subsidiaries are detailed in the following table: 

Investments in subsidiaries

(Euro/000) Country
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

Industries S.p.A. Italy 100% 100% 233,116 222,231

Moncler Lunettes Italy 0% 51% 0 303

Total 233,116 222,534

% ownership Carrying amount

 

Financial information related to the subsidiaries are detailed in the following table: 

Summary of subsidiary's financial 

information

(Euro/000) Assets Liabilities Net equity Revenues Profit/(Loss)

Industries S.p.A. 552,066 235,879 316,187 648,312 78,082

Moncler Lunettes 0 0 0 128 358

Total 552,066 235,879 316,187 648,440 78,440

Summary of subsidiary's financial 

information

(Euro/000) Assets Liabilities Net equity Revenues Profit/(Loss)

Industries S.p.A. 479,060 250,442 228,618 584,419 75,848

Moncler Lunettes 1,064 387 677 2,244 84

Total 480,124 250,829 229,295 586,663 75,932

December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015
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With reference to Industries S.p.A., it should be noted that the investment carrying value 

includes also the higher value recognized during its acquisition and attributable to the goodwill  

entirely allocated to Moncler business. At the reporting date, management found that there was 

no risk of impairment of the carrying amount.  

however lower than the net equity of the subsidiary, is fully recoverable given the positive 

performance of Moncler business and the current outlook; these assumptions are also supported 

by the impairment test performed on the consolidated cash generating unit of the Moncler 

business described in the consolidated financial statements of the Moncler Group. The increase 

of the carrying value of the investment arises from the accounting treatment of the stock option 

plans and performance shares adopted by the Company and described in note 8.2. 

Furthermore, the market capitalization of the Company, based on the average price of Moncler 

share in 2016, shows a positive difference with respect to the net equity, indirectly confirming 

the value of the goodwill attributable to the Moncler business. 

Please refer to the consolidated financial statements for a complete list of the Group companies 

directly and indirectly controlled by the Company. 

 

4.5. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only when there is a law within a given 

tax jurisdiction which provides for such right to offset. The balances were as follows as at 

December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015: 

Deferred taxation

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

 Deferred tax assets 1,588 1,968

 Deferred tax liabilities (64,110) (63,638)

Net amount (62,522) (61,670)  
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Changes in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are detailed in the following table: 

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

(Euro/000)

Intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0

Derivatives 0 0 0 0 0

Employee benefits 4 0 20 0 24

Provisions 0 0 0 0 0

Other temporary items 1,964 (400) 0 0 1,564

Tax assets 1,968 (400) 20 0 1,588

Intangible assets (61,224) (472) 0 0 (61,696)

Financial assets (2,414) 0 0 0 (2,414)

Tax liabilities (63,638) (472) 0 0 (64,110)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (61,670) (872) 20 0 (62,522)

Opening 

balance - 

January 1, 

2016

Taxes 

charged to 

the income 

statement

Taxes 

accounted for 

in Equity

Other 

movements

Closing 

balance - 

December 31, 

2016

 

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

(Euro/000)

Intangible assets 12 (12) 0 0 0

Derivatives 2 0 (2) 0 0

Employee benefits 28 0 (24) 0 4

Provisions 4 (3) 0 (1) 0

Other temporary items 2,526 (563) 0 1 1,964

Tax assets 2,572 (578) (26) 0 1,968

Intangible assets (68,386) 7,161 0 1 (61,224)

Financial assets (2,766) 352 0 0 (2,414)

Derivatives 0 0 0 0 0

Tax liabilities (71,152) 7,513 0 1 (63,638)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (68,580) 6,935 (26) 1 (61,670)

Opening 

balance - 

January 1, 

2015

Taxes 

charged to 

the income 

statement

Taxes 

accounted for 

in Equity

Other 

movements

Closing 

balance - 

December 31, 

2015

 

The decrease in deferred tax liabilities in 2015 compared to 2014 was mainly due to the 

reduction of the tax rate expected at the time of potential reversal following the change 

introduced by the Stability Law of December 28, 2015. 
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The taxable amount on which deferred tax have been calculated is detailed in the following 

table: 

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

(Euro/000)

Employee benefits 102 24 15 4

Other temporary items 6,126 1,564 7,541 1,964

Tax assets 6,228 1,588 7,556 1,968

Intangible assets (221,127) (61,696) (219,438) (61,224)

Financial assets (10,064) (2,414) (10,064) (2,414)

Tax liabilities (231,191) (64,110) (229,502) (63,638)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (224,963) (62,522) (221,946) (61,670)

Closing balance 

- December 31, 

2016

Taxable 

Amount 2016

Taxable 

Amount 2015

Closing 

balance - 

December 31, 

2015

 

The caption other temporary items mainly refers to the costs incurred for the listing process and 

to the Directors’ remunerations. 

 

4.6. Trade receivables 

Trade receivables

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

 Trade receivables, third parties 230 74

 Trade receivables, intra-group 53,943 48,533

 Provision for impairment (7) (7)

Total, net value 54,166 48,600  

Trade receivables are originated from the marketing and communication operations of the 

Company related to the brand development and Group operations and are mostly considered 

intercompany transactions.  

There are no trade receivables with a due date greater than five years. There is no difference 

between the book value and the fair value of trade receivables. 

Trade receivables from Group companies mainly related to the receivable from the subsidiary 

Industries S.p.A. resulting from the royalties for the use of the Moncler trademark, management 

fees and fees for marketing services. 
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4.7. Cash and cash equivalents 

As at December 31, 2016, the caption cash on hand and in bank amounts to Euro 1,487 

thousand (Euro 788 thousand as at December 31, 2015) and includes funds available in banks. 

Please refer to the statement of cash flows for further information related to cash fluctuation. 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the 

Statement of cash flow

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

Cash in hand and at the bank 1,487 788

Other current financial assets 0 0

Total 1,487 788  

 

4.8. Other current assets 

Other current assets

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

 Advances on account to vendors 1,314 117

 Prepaid expenses 720 752

 Tax receivables excluding income taxes 1,261 1,180

 Other current assets 12 40

 Other current assets, intra-group 0 40

Total other current assets 3,307 2,129  

The caption other current taxes consists mainly of the receivable due from the tax authority 

related to IRES receivable for personnel expenses not deducted for IRAP purposes as well as the 

VAT receivable. 

There are no other receivable with a maturity date greater than twelve months. There are no 

differences between the amounts included in the consolidated financial statements and their fair 

values. 
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4.9. Trade payables 

As at December 31, 2016, the caption trade payables pertains mostly to marketing and 

communication services. 

Trade payables

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

 Trade payables, third parties 18,643 14,718

 Trade payables, intra-group 363 411

Total 19,006 15,129  

Details of the transactions with subsidiaries are provided in the note 9.1 on related parties. 
 

4.10. Other current payables 

As at December 31, 2016, the caption other current payables included the following: 

Other current liabilities

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

 Directors and audit related payables 2,281 1,907

 Amounts payable to employees and consultants 1,036 664

 Employees taxation payables 477 563

 Other current liabilities 333 230

 Other current liabilities, intra-group 22,014 11,701

Total 26,141 15,065  

As at December 31, 2016, similar to the prior year, the caption other current liabilities, intra-

group includes mainly amounts related to the fiscal consolidation. For additional information 

please see note 8.1. 
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4.11. Pension fund (TFR) 

As at December 31, 2016, the caption includes the employee pension fund as detailed in the 

following table: 

Employees pension funds - movements

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

Net recognized liability - opening 442 469

Interest costs 10 7

Service costs 156 156

Payments (68) (101)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 118 (89)

Net recognized liability - closing 658 442  

The actuarial valuation of employee termination benefits (TFR) is based on the Projected Unit 

Credit Cost method. Reported below are the main economic and demographic assumptions 

utilised for actuarial valuations. 

Assumptions

Discount rate 1.31%

Inflation rate 1.50%

Nominal rate of wage growth 1.50%

Labour turnover rate 3.58%

Probability of request of advances of TFR 4.42%

Percentage required in case of advance 70.00%

Life Table - Male M2015 (*)

Life Table - Female F2015 (*)

(*) Table ISTAT - resident population  

The following table shows the effect of variations, within reasonable limits, in key actuarial 

assumptions on defined benefit plan obligations at year end. 

Sensitivity analysis

(Euro/000) Variation

Discount rate +0,5% (44)

Discount rate -0,5% 45

Rate of payments Increases x(1+20%) (1)

Rate of payments Decreases x(1-20%) (1)

Rate of Price Inflation Increases (+0,5%) 37

Rate of Price Inflation Decreases (-0,5%) (35)

Rate of Salary Increases (+0,5%) 22

Rate of Salary Decreases (-0,5%) (20)

Increase the retirement age (+1 year) 4

Decrease the retirement age (-1 year) (4)

Increase longevity (+1 year) 0

Decrease longevity (-1 year) (0)  
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4.12. Due to banks and financial debt 

Borrowings

(Euro/000)
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

Short-term portion of long-term bank loans 23,972 23,939

Intra-group short-term borrowings 10,399 22,802

Short-term borrowings 34,371 46,741

Long-term borrowings 0 23,972

Totale 34,371 70,713  

On December 31, 2016, Moncler SpA has a loan that amounts to Euro 24 million (Euro 48 

million as at December 31, 2015) payable on a half-year basis and expiring on December 31, 

2017. As at December 31, 2016 the current short-term portion of this loan amounts to Euro 24 

million (Euro 24 million current short-term portion and Euro 24 million the long-term portion 

as at December 31, 2015). 

As at December 31, 2015, the IRS contract hedging the exposure to interest rate risk on the 

outstanding unsecured loan was terminated upon expiry.  

The decrease of caption intra-group short-term borrowings mainly pertain to the 

reimbursement of the loan issued on arm length basis by the subsidiary Industries S.p.A. For 

further information, please refer to note 8.1. 

The following tables show the break-down of the borrowing in accordance with their maturity 

date: 

Ageing financial liabilities
December 31, 

2016

December 31, 

2015

(Euro/000)

Within 2 years 0 23,972

Total 0 23,972  

The loans do not include covenants. 
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4.13. Tax assets and liabilities 

Tax liabilities amounted to Euro 1,875 thousand as at December 31, 2016, net of current tax 

assets (Euro 14,895 as at December 31, 2015). The balance pertains to IRES and IRAP 

payable. 

 

4.14. Shareholders’ equity 

As at December 31, 2016 the subscribed share capital constitute by 250,214,724 shares was 

fully paid and amounted to Euro 50,042,945 with a nominal value of Euro 0.20 per share. 

Changes in shareholders' equity for 2016 and the comparative period are included in the 

consolidated statements of changes in equity. 

On February 12, 2016 Moncler bought 1,000,000 Company shares, equal to 0.4% of the 

current share capital, for a total amount of Euro 12.8 million. 

The increase of the share capital and the share premium reserve arises from the exercise of n. 

90,266 vested options (for the same number of shares) in relation to the stock option plan 

approved by the shareholders meeting of Moncler S.p.A. dated February 28, 2014 at the 

exercise price of Euro 10.20 per share. 

The other changes in shareholders' equity result from the accounting treatment of stock option 

plans. 

The change in retained earnings mainly relates to the payment of dividends to shareholders and 

the adjustment to market value of the financial liabilities towards non-banking parties. 

In 2016 the Company distributed dividends to the shareholders for an amount of Euro 34,882 

thousand (Euro 30,014 thousand in 2015). 

The following table includes details about how the shareholders reserve should be used: 

Information on reserves

(Euro) Amount Possible use Available amount
Non-available 

amount

Amounts used 

in the previous 

3 years to 

hedge losses

Amounts used 

in the previous 

3 years for 

other reason

Share capital 50,042,945 - -                                50,042,945 -                  -                  

Reserves:

    Legal reserve 10,300,000 B -                                10,300,000 -                  -                  

    Share premium 109,186,923 A, B, C 109,186,923                   - -                  -                  

    OCI Reserve (145,112) - -                                (145,112) -                  -                  

    IFRS 2 Reserve 26,659,632 A, B, C 26,659,632                    - -                  -                  

    Retained earnings 96,137,537 A, B, C 95,992,425                    145,112 -                  55,013,645       

Total share capital and reserves 292,181,925 231,838,980 60,342,945                     -   55,013,645

Non distributable amount 0

Distributable remaining amount 231,838,980

Explanation: A share capital increase - B hedge of losses - C distribution to the shareholders

(*) Share premium reserve entirely available after allocating to legal reserve up to 20% of the share capital

(*)
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The caption OCI (“Other Comprehensive Income”) reserve includes the actuarial risks related to 

the employee pension fund.  

Changes in that reserve is as follows: 

Other comprehensive income

(Euro/000)
Value before 

tax effect
Tax effect

Value after 

tax effect

Value before 

tax effect
Tax effect

Value after 

tax effect

Reserve as at January 1, 2015 (144) 31 (113) (8) 2 (6)

Reclassification to Other reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0

Changes in the period 89 (24) 65 8 (2) 6

Translation differences of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal in the income statement of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reserve as at December 31, 2015 (55) 7 (48) 0 0 0

Reserve as at January 1, 2016 (55) 7 (48) 0 0 0

Reclassification to Other reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0

Changes in the period (117) 20 (97) 0 0 0

Translation differences of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal in the income statement of the period 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reserve as at December 31, 2016 (172) 27 (145) 0 0 0

Employees pension fund - actuarial 

valuation 
Fair value IRS

 

 

5. COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES GIVEN  

5.1. Commitments 

The Company does not have any significant operating lease commitments. 

 

5.2. Guarantees given  

As at the date of the financial statements, the Company had no guarantees toward the Group 

companies nor third parties. 

 

6. CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

The Company is subject to risks which may arise during the performance of its ordinary 

activities. Based on information available to date, management believes that there currently are 

no contingent liability that need to be accrued in the financial statements. 

 

7. INFORMATION ABOUT FINANCIAL RISKS 

The Company's financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, loans, receivables and 

trade payables and other current receivables and payables and non-current assets as well as 

derivatives. 

The Company is mostly exposed to interest rate risk, liquidity risk and capital risk. 
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7.1. Market risk 

Exchange rate risk  

The Company operated mostly with companies in Euro and, as such, the exposure to exchange 

rate risk was limited. As at December 31, 2016, a small portion of the Company’s assets and 

liabilities (i.e. trade receivables and payables) denominated in a currency different from its 

functional currency. 

 

Interest rate risk 

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is connected mostly to changes in interest rates 

relate to outstanding loans. 

On December 31, 2016, the Company has an unsecured loan in the residual amount of Euro 24 

million (Euro 48 million as at December 31, 2015), payable on a half-year basis and expiring 

on December 31, 2017. The applicable interest rate is Euribor plus a market spread. As at 

December 31, 2016 the residual loan amounts to Euro 24 million (Euro 24 million current 

short-term portion and Euro 24 million the long-term portion as at December 31, 2015). 

In order to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk, the Company, in the past, entered into hedge 

operations IRS (Interest Rate Swap). As at December 31, 2015, the hedge has expired and 

following the analysis of expected interest rates for the period of the loan (two years), the 

management considered the hedge no longer suitable. 

As far as financial debts are concerned, a fluctuation of +/- 0.25% in the interest rate would 

have led on the net results for the year ended December 31, 2016 to a worsening of Euro 169 

thousand in financial charges and an improvement of Euro 169 thousand. 

With reference to the provisions of IFRS 13, it should be pointed out that the category of 

financial instruments measured at fair value is mainly attributable to the hedging of interest 

rate risk. The valuation of these instruments is based on the discounting of future cash flows 

considering the interest rates at the reporting date (level 2 as explained in the section related to 

principles). 

The Company is not exposed to changes in currency interest rates. 
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7.2. Credit risk 

The Company has no significant concentrations of credit risk with companies that are not part 

of the Group. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the amount reported in 

the financial statements. 

As far as the credit risk arising from other financial assets other than trade receivables 

(including cash and short-term bank deposits) is concerned, the credit risk for the Company 

arises from default of the counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount 

of financial assets recorded in the financial statements. 

 

7.3. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises from the ability to obtain financial resources at a sustainable cost in order 

for the Group to conduct its daily business operations. The factors that influence this risk are 

related to the resources generated/absorbed by operating activities, by investing and financing 

activities and by availability of funds in the financial market. 

Management believes that the financial resources available today, along with those that are 

generated by the current operations will enable the Company to achieve its objectives and to 

meet its investment needs and the repayment of its debt at the agreed upon maturity date. 

It is reported in the following table an analysis of the contractual maturities (including 

interests), for financial liabilities. 

Contractual cash flows

Non derivative financial liabilities
Total book 

value Total 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years

2-3 anni 

years

3-4 anni 

years

4-5 anni 

years

more than 

5 years

(Euro/000)

 Bank overdrafts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Self-liquidating loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Financial debt to third parties 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Unsecured loans 23,972 24,161 7,294 16,867 0 0 0 0 0

Contractual cash flows

Derivative financial liabilities
Total book 

value Total 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years

2-3 anni 

years

3-4 anni 

years

4-5 anni 

years

more than 

5 years

(Euro/000)

 Interest rate swap hedging  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Forward contracts on exchange 

rate hedging 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

     - Outflows 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

     - Inflowsw 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0   

 

7.4. Operating and capital management risks 

In the management of operating risk, the Company’s main objective is to manage the risks 

associated with the development of business in foreign markets that are subject to specific laws 

and regulations.  

The Group has implemented guidelines in the following areas: 

• appropriate level of segregation of duties; 
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• reconciliation and constant monitoring of significant transactions; 

• documentation of controls and procedures; 

• technical and professional training of employees; 

• periodic assessment of corporate risks and identification of corrective actions. 

As far as the capital management risk is concerned, the Company's objectives are aimed at the 

going concern issue in order to ensure a fair economic return to shareholders and other 

stakeholders while maintaining a good rating in the capital debt market. The Company 

manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in line with changes in general economic 

conditions and with the strategic objectives. 

 

8. OTHER INFORMATION 

8.1. Related-party transactions 

Set out below are the transactions with related parties deemed relevant for the purposes of the 

“Related-party procedure” adopted by the Group.  

The “Related-party procedure” is available on the Company’s website 

(www.monclergroup.com, under “Governance/Corporate documents”). 

Transactions with subsidiaries are of a commercial nature and are conducted at market 

conditions similar to those conducted with third parties and are detailed as follows: 

Intercompany balances

(Euro/000) Receivables Payables Net value

 Industries S.p.A. 53,278 (32,527) 20,751

 Moncler Suisse Sa 1 0 1

 Moncler France S.a.r.l. 0 (5) (5)

 Moncler USA Inc. 3 (108) (105)

 Moncler USA Retail Llc 656 0 656

 Industries Yield S.r.l. 5 0 5

 Moncler Shinsegae Inc. 0 (136) (136)

 Moncler Japan Corporation 0 0 0

 Total 53,943 (32,776) 21,167

Intercompany transactions

(Euro/000)
Revenues

Expenses/Other 

revenues net
Net value

 Industries S.p.A. 173,660 (241) 173,419

 Moncler Suisse Sa 0 1 1

 Moncler France S.a.r.l. 0 (5) (5)

 Moncler USA Inc. 0 (59) (59)

 Moncler USA Retail Llc 0 657 657

 Industries Yield S.r.l. 0 0 0

 Moncler Shinsegae Inc. 0 0 0

 Moncler Japan Corporation 0 0 0

 Total 173,660 353 174,013

December 31, 2016

2016
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Moncler S.p.A. granted to the subsidiary Industries S.p.A. a license to use the Moncler brand. 

Based on the license agreement, the Company is remunerated through payments of royalties and 

advertising contributions.  

The total amount of royalties, advertising contributions and consulting fees for fiscal year 2016 

amounted to Euro 173.7 million (Euro 146.8 million in 2015). 

In addition, the Company has entered into a legal, fiscal and administrative consulting 

agreement with Industries S.p.A. 

Please note that Moncler S.p.A. is part of the Group’s fiscal consolidation and is responsible for 

taxes payable and the related interests associated with taxable income of Industries S.p.A., 

Moncler Lunettes S.r.l. and Moncler Enfant S.r.l. 

Compensation paid of the members of the Board of Directors in 2016 are Euro 4,083 thousand 

(Euro 3,656 thousand in 2015). 

Compensation paid of the members of the Board of Auditors in 2015 are Euro 142 thousand 

(same amount in 2015). 

In 2016 the costs relating to stock option plans and performance shares (described in note 8.2) 

referring to members of the Board of Directors amount to Euro 3,544 thousand (Euro 1,837 

thousand in 2015). 

There are no other related-party transaction. 

The following tables summarize the afore-mentioned related-party transactions that took place 

during 2016 and the prior year: 

(Euro/000) Type of relationship Note
December 

31, 2016
%

December 

31, 2015
%

Industries S.p.A. Trade transactions c 173,660 99.9% 146,816 99.8%

Industries S.p.A. Trade transactions b 0 0.0% 54 (0.1)%

Industries S.p.A. Trade transactions b (81) 0.2% (102) 0.2%

Industries S.p.A.
Interest expense on financing 

agreement
a (160) 24.2% (846) 44.7%

Moncler USA Retail Llc Trade transactions c 0 0.0% 0 0.0%

Moncler Suisse Sa 0 0.0% 0 0.0%

Moncler France S.a.r.l. Trade transactions b (5) 0.0% 0 0.0%

Moncler Lunettes S.r.l. Trade transactions c 0 0.0% 151 0.1%

Moncler Lunettes S.r.l. Trade transactions b 0 0.0% (16) 0.0%

Moncler USA Inc. Trade transactions c 0 0.0% 3 0.0%

Moncler USA Inc. Trade transactions b (59) 0.1% (44) 0.1%

Moncler USA Retail Llc Trade transactions b 657 (1.2)% 0 0.0%

Moncler Suisse Sa Trade transactions b 1 0.0% 0 0.0%

Moncler Shinsegae Inc. Trade transactions b 0 0.0% (134) 0.3%

Moncler Japan Corporation Trade transactions c 0 0.0% 4 0.0%

Moncler Japan Corporation Trade transactions b 0 0.0% (7) 0.0%

Directors and board of statutory 

auditors
Labour services b (4,225) 7.8% (3,798) 8.6%

Directors and board of statutory 

auditors
Labour services b (3,544) 6.6% (1,837) 4.2%

Total 166,244 140,244

a- % calculated based on total financial costs

b- % calculated on operating costs

c- % calculated on revenues  
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(Euro/000) Type of relationship Note
December 31, 

2015
%

December 31, 

2014
%

Industries S.p.A. Trade payables b (114) 0.6% (227) 1.5%

Industries S.p.A. Financial debt a (10,399) 30.3% (22,802) 32.2%

Industries S.p.A.
Debt from fiscal 

consolidation
d (22,014) 84.2% (11,676) 77.5%

Industries S.p.A. Trade receivables c 53,278 98.4% 48,530 99.9%

Moncler USA Retail Llc Trade receivables c 656 1.2% 0 0.0%

Industries Yield S.r.l. Trade receivables c 5 0.0% 0 0.0%

Moncler Enfant S.r.l.
Debt from fiscal 

consolidation
d 0 0.0% (26) 0.2%

Moncler Suisse Sa Trade receivables c 1 0.0% 0 0.0%

Moncler Lunettes S.r.l.
Credit from fiscal 

consolidation
e 0 0.0% 40 1.9%

Moncler France S.a.r.l. Trade payables b (5) 0.0% 0 0.0%

Moncler USA Inc. Trade receivables c 3 0.0% 3 0.0%

Moncler USA Inc. Trade payables b (108) 0.6% (43) 0.3%

Moncler Shinsegae Inc. Trade payables b (136) 0.7% (134) 0.9%

Moncler Japan 

Corporation
Trade payables b 0 0.0% (7) 0.0%

Directors and board of 

statutory auditors

Other current 

liabilities
d (2,281) 8.7% (1,907) 12.7%

Total 18,886 11,751

a incidenza % calcolata sui debiti finanziari totali

b incidenza % calcolata sui debiti commerciali

c incidenza % calcolata sui crediti commerciali

d incidenza % calcolata sulle altre passività correnti  
 

The following tables summarize the weight of related-party transactions on the financial 

statements as at and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

(Euro/000) Revenues
Operating 

expenses

Total interest 

expenses

Trade 

receivables

Other current 

assets

Trade 

payables

Other 

payables, 

current

Total financial 

debt

Total related parties 173,660 (7,256) (160) 53,943 0 (363) (24,295) (10,399)

Total financial statement 173,766 (53,929) (662) 54,167 3,307 (19,006) (26,141) (34,371)

Weight % 99.9% 13.5% 24.2% 99.6% 0.0% 1.9% 92.9% 30.3%

(Euro/000) Revenues
Operating 

expenses

Total interest 

expenses

Trade 

receivables

Other current 

assets

Trade 

payables

Other 

payables, 

current

Total financial 

debt

Total related parties 146,974 (5,884) (846) 48,533 40 (411) (13,609) (22,802)

Total financial statement 147,114 (44,052) (1,891) 48,600 2,129 (15,129) (15,065) (70,713)

Weight % 99.9% 13.4% 44.7% 99.9% 1.9% 2.7% 90.3% 32.2%

December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015
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8.2. Stock option plans 

The Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016 reflect the values of the stock option plans 

approved in 2014 and 2015 and the value of the new Performance Share Plan approved in 

2016.  

 

With regard to stock option plans approved in 2014, please note that: 

• The Stock Option 2014-2018 plan “Top Management and Key people” provides for a 

vesting period ending with the approval of the consolidated financial statements as at 

December 31, 2016. Each beneficiary may exercise the options granted on condition 

that the specific performance goals related to Group’s consolidated EBITDA are 

achieved. The exercise price of the options is equal to Euro 10.20 and allows for the 

subscribtion of shares in the ratio of one ordinary share for every option exercised; 

• The Stock Option 2014-2018 plan “Italian Corporate Structures” provides for three 

separate tranches with a vesting period starting from the grant date of the plan until the 

approval date by the Board of Directors of the consolidated financial statements 

respectively as at December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016. Each beneficiary may exercise 

the options granted on condition that the specific performance goals related to Group’s 

consolidated EBITDA are achieved. The exercise price of the options is equal to Euro 

10.20 and allows for the subscribtion of shares in the ratio of one ordinary share for 

every option exercised; 

• The fair value of stock options was estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes 

method, based on the following assumptions: 

• share price at the grant date of the options Euro 13.27; 

• estimated life of options equal to the period from the grant date to the following 

estimated exercise dates:  

o Stock Option Plan for Top Management and Key People: March 1, 2018; 

o Stock Option Plan for Italian Corporate Structures: I tranche March 1, 2017, 

II tranche August 31, 2017, III tranche March, 1 2018; 

• dividend yield 1%; 

• fair value per tranche from Euro 3.8819 to Euro 4.1597. 

• The effect of the two plans on the 2016 income statement amounted to Euro 2,486 

thousand, while the increasing on net equity of the exercise of the first and second 

tranches of the plan “Italian Corporate Structures” amounts to Euro 921 thousand. 

• As at December 31, 2016 the following options are still in circulation: 4,405,000 options 

for the “Top Management Plan and Key People” and 166,700 options for the “Italian 

Corporate Structures Plan”, after the exercising of 90,266 shares related to first and 
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second tranches during 2016 of the plan “Italian Corporate Structures”. With reference 

to Moncler S.p.A., as at December 31, 2016 the following options are still in circulation: 

1,760,000 options for the Top Management Plan and Key People and 8,968 options for 

the Italian Corporate Structures Plan. 

 

With regard to stock option plans approved in 2015, please note that: 

• The 2015 Plan is intended for executive directors and/or Key-managers with strategic 

responsibilities employees and external consultants and other collaborators of Moncler 

S.p.A. and its subsidiaries which are considered as having a strategic importance or are 

otherwise able to make a significant contribution to achieving Group's strategic 

objectives; 

• The 2015 Plan provides for the assignment of maximum 2,548,225 options through 3 

cycles of allocation, free of charge. The options allow, under the conditions established, 

to subscribe ordinary shares of Moncler S.p.A. The first grant cycle was completed on 

May 12, 2015, with the allocation of 1,385,000 options; 

• The exercise price of the options is equal to Euro 16.34 and allows for the subscribtion 

of shares in the ratio of one ordinary share for every option exercised; 

• The 2015 Plan provides for a vesting period of three years between the allocation date 

and the initial exercise date. The option can be exercised within June 30, 2020 

maximum, for the first attribution cycle and June 30, 2021 or June 30, 2022, 

respectively, for the second and third attribution cycle; 

• Each beneficiary may exercise the options granted on condition that the specific 

performance goals related to Group’s consolidated EBITDA are achieved; 

• The fair value of 2015 Plan was estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes 

method, based on the following assumptions: 

• share price at the grant date of the options Euro 16.34; 

• estimated life of options equal to the period from the grant date to the following 

estimated exercise: May 31, 2019; 

• dividend yield 1%; 

• fair value per tranche Euro 3.2877. 

• The effect on the income statement of 2016 of the 2015 Plan amounts to Euro 12 

thousand, which mainly includes the costs accrued during the period, calculation of 

which is based on the fair value of the plans, which takes into account the value of the 

share at the grant date, the volatility, the flow of the expected dividends, the option term 

and the risk-free rate. 
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• As at December 31, 2016 there are still in circulation 1,195,000 options. With reference 

to Moncler S.p.A., as at December 31, 2016 there are still in circulation 20,000 options. 

On April 20, 2016, the shareholders meeting of Moncler approved the adoption of a stock grant 

plan entitled "2016-2018 Performance Shares Plan” (“2016 Plan”) addressed to Executive 

Directors and/or Key Managers, and/or employees, and/or collaborators, and/or external 

consultants of Moncler S.p.A. and of its subsidiaries, which have strategically relevant roles or 

are otherwise capable of making a significant contribution, with a view to pursuing the Group’s 

strategic objectives. 

The object of the Plan is the free granting of the Moncler shares in case certain Performance 

Targets are achieved at the end of the vesting period of 3 years. 

The proposed maximum number of shares serving the Plan is equal to No. 3,800,000 resulting 

from a Capital Increase and/or from the allocation of treasury shares. 

The Performance Targets will have to be assessed in compliance with the 2016-2018 approved 

business plan, and are expressed base on the earning per share index (“EPS”) of the Group in 

the Vesting Period, adjusted by the conditions of over\under performance. 

The Plan provides for a maximum of 3 cycles of attribution; the first attribution cycle ended 

with the assignment of 2,856,000 Moncler Rights. 

As at December 31, 2016 there are still 2,838,000 rights. With reference to Moncler S.p.A., as 

at December 31, 2016 there are still in circulation 750,500 rights. 

The effect on the income statement of 2016 amounts to Euro 2,160 thousand. 

As stated by IFRS 2, these plans are defined as Equity Settled. 

For information regarding the plan, please see the company's website, www.monclergroup.com, 

in the "Governance/Shareholders’ Meeting" section. 

 

8.3. Significant non-recurring events and transactions 

On April 20, 2016, the Moncler Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting approved an incentive loyalty 

plan, known as "Performance Shares 2016-2018" (Plan 2016). 

The description of the incentive loyalty plans and the related costs are included in note 8.2. 

 

8.4. Atypical and/or unusual transactions 

It should be noted that during 2016 the Company did not enter into any atypical and/or 

unusual transactions. 
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8.5. Financial instruments 

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial 

liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at 

fair value. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities 

not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

December 31, 2016

(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial assets measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - -

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging - - - 2 

Sub-total - - -

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables (*) 223,497 -

Cash and cash equivalents (*) 1,486,546 -

Sub-total 1,710,043 - -

Total 1,710,043 - -  

December 31, 2015

(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial assets measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - -

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging - - -

Sub-total - - -

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables (*) 66,796 -

Cash and cash equivalents (*) 788,241 -

Sub-total 855,037 - -

Total 855,037 - -  

December 31, 2016

(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - - 2 

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging - - - 2 

Other financial liabilities - - - 3 

Sub-total - - -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Trade and other payables (*) (15,051) -

Bank overdrafts (*) - -

Short-term bank loans (*) - -

Bank loans (23,972) - (23,972) 3 

Sub-total (39,023) - (23,972)

Total (39,023) - (23,972)  
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December 31, 2015

(Euro/000) Current Non-current Fair value Level

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Interest rate swap used for hedging - - - 2 

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging - - - 2 

Other financial liabilities - - - 3 

Sub-total - - -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Trade and other payables (*) (18,873) -

Bank overdrafts (*) - -

Short-term bank loans (*) - -

Bank loans (23,939) (23,972) (47,911) 3 

Sub-total (42,812) (23,972) (47,911)

Total (42,812) (23,972) (47,911)

(*) Such items refer to short-term financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying value is a 

reasonable approximation of fair value, which was therefore not disclosed.
 

 

8.6. Fees paid to independent auditors 

Fees paid to independent auditors are summarized below: 

(Euro)

Audit KPMG S.p.A. 120,111             

Network KPMG S.p.A. -                    

Attestation services KPMG S.p.A. 20,250               

Network KPMG S.p.A. 2,500                 

Other services KPMG S.p.A. 26,810               

Network KPMG S.p.A. 36,777               

Total 206,448

Audit and attestation services

Entity that has provided 

the service
Fees 2016
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9. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

No significant events occurred after the end of the period. 

 

10. MOTION TO APPROVE THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE ALLOCATION 

OF THE RESULT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

In conclusion to these explanatory notes, we invite you to approve the Moncler S.p.A.’s stand 

alone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016. 

We recommend that you approve the distribution of a gross dividend of Euro 0.18 per ordinary 

share, payable out of the net income of the 2016 fiscal year totalling Euro 81,544,489. 

The total amount to be distributed as a dividend, having taken into consideration the number of 

shares that are presently issued (n. 250,231,976), net of the shares which are directly owned by 

the Company (n. 1,000,000) on the date of the present report, is equal to Euro 44,861,756.  

It must be noted that the above-mentioned amounts are subject to changes due to the potential 

issue of new shares, following the exercise of stock option rights. 

 

 

 

*** 

 

 

The financial statements, comprised of the income statement, statement of comprehensive 

income, statement of financial position, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows 

and explanatory notes to the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 

position and the results of operations and cash flows and corresponds to the Company’s 

accounting records. 

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

The Chairman 

Remo Ruffini 



ATTESTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PURSUANT TO ART. 154 BIS OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE NO. 58/98 

 
1. The undersigned, Remo Ruffini, in his capacity as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Luciano 
Santel, as the executive officer responsible for the preparation of Moncler S.p.A.’s financial statements, 
pursuant to the provisions of Article 154-bis, clauses 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree no. 58 of 1998, hereby 
attest: 
 

• the adequacy with respect to the Company structure  

• and the effective application  
 

of the administrative and accounting procedures applied in the preparation of the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements at 31 December 2016. 
 
2. The assessment of the adequacy of the administrative and accounting procedures used for the preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2016 was based on a process defined by Moncler 
S.p.A. in accordance with the Internal Control – Integrated Framework model issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, an internationally-accepted reference framework. 
 
3. The undersigned moreover attest that: 
 
3.1 the consolidated financial statements: 
 

a) have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as endorsed by 
the European Union through Regulation (EC) 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council, 
dated 19 July 2002 

b) correspond to the amounts shown in the Company’s accounts, books and records; and 
c) provide a fair and correct representation of the financial conditions, results of operations and cash 

flows of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries as of 31 December 2016 and for the year then 
ended. 

 
3.2 the director’s report includes a reliable operating and financial review of the Company and of the Group as 
well as a description of the main risks and uncertainties to which they are exposed. 
 
 
 
 
28 February 2017 
 
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF    EXECUTIVE OFFICER RESPONSIBLE FOR 
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE    FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE  
OFFICER       COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
Remo Ruffini       Luciano Santel 
 

 







ATTESTATION OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PURSUANT TO ART. 154 BIS OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE NO. 58/98 

 
1. The undersigned, Remo Ruffini, in his capacity as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Luciano 
Santel, as the executive officer responsible for the preparation of Moncler S.p.A.’s financial statements, 
pursuant to the provisions of Article 154-bis, clauses 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree no. 58 of 1998, hereby 
attest: 
 

• the adequacy with respect to the Company structure  

• and the effective application  
 

of the administrative and accounting procedures applied in the preparation of the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements at 31 December 2016. 
 
2. The assessment of the adequacy of the administrative and accounting procedures used for the preparation 
of the separate financial statements at 31 December 2016 was based on a process defined by Moncler S.p.A. 
in accordance with the Internal Control – Integrated Framework model issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission, an internationally-accepted reference framework. 
 
3. The undersigned moreover attest that: 
 
3.1 the separate financial statements: 
 

a) have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as endorsed by 
the European Union through Regulation (EC) 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council, 
dated 19 July 2002 

b) correspond to the amounts shown in the Company’s accounts, books and records; and 
c) provide a fair and correct representation of the financial conditions, results of operations and cash 

flows of the Company as of 31 December 2016 and for the year then ended. 
 
3.2 the director’s report includes a reliable operating and financial review of the Company, as well as a 
description of the main risks and uncertainties to which they are exposed. 
 
 
 
 
28 February 2017 
 
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF    EXECUTIVE OFFICER RESPONSIBLE FOR 
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE    FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE  
OFFICER       COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
Remo Ruffini       Luciano Santel 
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* * *  

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS  

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS  GENERAL MEETING 

In terms of Article 153 of Legislative Decree no.58 of 24 February, 1998 

 

Dear Shareholders, 

this report, prepared in accordance with Article 153 of Legislative Decree 

no 58/1998 (hereinafter, also "T.U.F."  the Consolidated Finance Act), 

refers to the work performed by the Board of Statutory Auditors of 

Moncler S.p.A. (hereinafter "Moncler" or the Company ") in the year 

ended 31 December 2016.  During the year, the Board of Statutory 

Auditors met thirteen times, attended five meetings of the Risk Control 

and Sustainability Committee and five meetings of the Appointments and 

Remuneration Committee; it also took part in eight meetings of the Board 

of Directors. During its meetings, it met with the statutory auditors of the 

subsidiary companies and the Supervisory Board pursuant to Legislative 

Decree 231/2001.  

1. Supervision of compliance with the law and the articles of 

association  

Also by attending Board of Directors  meetings, the Board of Statutory 

Auditors regularly obtained from the Directors information on the 

Company s activities and on operations of major economic, financial an 

impacting the Company s capital as approved and carried out during the 

year by the Company and the Group companies, also in terms of Article 



150 of the T.U.F. , paragraph 1. On the basis of available information, the 

Board of Statutory Auditors can provide reasonable assurance that these 

operations were compliant with the law and the articles of association and 

were not clearly imprudent, risky, in breach of General Meeting 

resolutions or such as to compromise the Company s assets. Furthermore, 

operations involving a potential conflict of interests took place in 

accordance with the law, regulatory requirements and the Articles of 

Association. 

We highlight some of the main events during the year as follows: 

• Pursuant to the Shareholders  Meeting resolution of 23 April 2015, the 

Company has acquired 1,000,000 treasury shares, representing 0.4% of 

share capital, for a total price of Euro 12.28 million.  This transaction 

took place in terms of articles 2357 and 2357 ter of the Italian Civil 

Code. The treasury share purchase program was completed on 12 

February 2016; 

• The Company has carried out a Shareholders  Meeting resolution of 20 

April 2016 by introducing the Performance Share Plan 2016-2018 and 

allocating 2,856,000 shares to 94 beneficiaries; 

• As part of a broader industrial project involving the partial insourcing 

of production of down coats, through Romanian subsidiary Industries 

Yield S.r.l., the Company has set up a production facility in Romania 

and has hired about 600 employees. This follows the acquisition of 

another production business in Romania in 2015; 

• In 2016, the Moncler Group was the subject of two different tax 

inspections.  Subsidiary Industries S.p.A. underwent a tax inspection by 

Italian Tax Police the Guardia di Finanza for the tax periods from 2011 

to 2014 and, for the reasons described in detail in the Significant events 

 Tax inspections section of the Directors  Report, said company has 

decided to create provision for Euro 7,500,000; this has taken its total 



provision for tax risks to Euro 8,515,000. The Independent Auditor 

concluded that the amount provided was reasonable. Moncler S.p.A. 

was also the subject of a tax inspection which was completed without 

any issues being raised.  In the meantime, there is an ongoing tax 

inspection of ISC S.p.A., a company merged through incorporation into 

subsidiary Industries S.p.A.. The company does not expect any 

significant adverse consequences given that the main transaction 

carried out by said company was the subject of a prior request to the tax 

authorities for a tax ruling and the authorities agreed that the method 

adopted by the company was fully acceptable for tax purposes; 

• In April, the company agreed a settlement with the purchasers of the 

Other Brands division. This settlement finally closed the legal disputes 

pending in Italy and the UK without leading to the recognition of any 

costs or revenues in the income statement for the year; 

• The Company has prepared a full Sustainability Report for 2016.  It 

highlights the particular commitment made by Moncler S.p.A. towards 

sustainable value creation. 

2. Supervision of compliance with principles of proper business 

management and presence of an appropriate organisational structure  

The Board of Statutory Auditors obtained information about the 

organisational structure, compliance with principles of proper business 

management and the adequacy of the instructions given by the Company 

to its subsidiaries in terms of Article 114, paragraph 2, of the T.U.F.. This 

information was obtained from the persons in charge of the relevant 

business divisions and through meetings with the Independent Auditors 

based on the reciprocal sharing of significant information. 

We did not note any issues based on a review of the annual reports issued 

by the respective Boards of Statutory Auditors on the financial statements 

of the subsidiaries. Likewise, no issues were brought to our attention 



during meetings with the members of the Boards of Statutory Auditors. 

The Board of Statutory Auditors has also confirmed that there were no 

atypical and unusual transactions with Group companies, third parties or 

related parties. 

3. Supervision of risk management and internal control system  

The Board of Statutory Auditors has supervised the adequacy of the risk 

management and internal control system through the following activities: 

− Meetings with Company management to review the risk 

management and internal control system; 

− Regular meetings with the Group Internal Audit Department and 

with the Risk Control and Sustainability Committee in order to 

evaluate how to plan work, based on identification and assessment 

of the main risks regarding business processes and organisational 

units; 

− Review of periodic Reports of control Functions and information 

bulletins on results of monitoring activity and implementation of 

corrective action identified; 

− Obtaining information from heads of Company divisions; 

− Discussion of results of work by Independent Auditors; 

− Attendance of meetings of the Control, Risk and Sustainability 

Committee; as necessary, deal with certain issues together with the 

Committee; 

The Board of Statutory Auditors has taken note of the risk mitigation plan 

which has involved the Control, Risk and Sustainability Committee, the 

Director responsible for controls and risks, the Internal Audit division and 

external advisors.  

Significant progress has been made in the area of risk mitigation. In 

particular, solutions to risks regarding business continuity and the 

information risk have been examined and implemented. 



During its supervisory activities, the Board of Statutory Auditors 

maintained a constant dialogue with the Company s Control Functions. 

The Board of Statutory Auditors notes that the annual reports of the 

Control Functions express a positive opinion on the overall internal control 

structure in terms of completeness, adequacy and reliability. 

The Supervisory Board has reported on its work during the year ended 31 

December 2016 without highlighting any issues worthy of mention.  It 

noted that the situation was satisfactory, on the whole, and broadly in line 

with the requirements of the Organisation, Management and Control 

Model. 

Based on the work done, the information obtained, the corrective action 

taken and the contents of the Reports of the Control Functions, the Board 

of Statutory Auditors does not believe there are any issues that could 

impact the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control 

system. 

4. Supervision of accounting system and financial reporting process  

The Board of Statutory Auditors met periodically with the Manager in 

charge of preparing accounting and corporate reports  in order to discuss 

the accounting system and its reliability in providing a proper 

representation of the Company s operating activities; it also reviewed the 

Report by the Manager in charge containing the results of control testing  

and the main issues identified in relation to application of Law 262/2005. 

The Board of Statutory Auditors also reviewed the declarations by the 

Chief Executive Officer and the Manager in charge in accordance with the 

requirements of Article 154 bis of the T.U.F..  No weaknesses that could 

affect the adequacy of the administrative and accounting procedures were 

identified by the Board of Statutory Auditors. 

During their meetings with the Board of Statutory Auditors, senior 



personnel from the Independent Auditors did not highlight any issues 

regarding the internal control system in relation to administrative and 

accounting procedures. 

The Board of Statutory Auditors confirmed that the information flow from 

material, non-EU subsidiaries was adequate for the purposes of checks on 

annual and interim accounts as required by article 36 of Market 

Regulations. 

In light of the information acquired and the meetings held, the Board of 

Statutory Auditors has concluded that the administrative accounting 

system and the Company s financial reporting processes are adequate. 

5. Supervision of related party transactions 

The Board of Statutory Auditors has reviewed the compliance of Related 

Party Procedures with applicable laws and regulations and confirmed that 

the procedures are duly applied. As far as the Board of Statutory Auditors 

is aware, there have been no intercompany transactions or related party 

transactions that may be considered not in the best interests of the 

Company. 

Related party transactions are described in the notes to the financial 

statements.. 

The Board of Statutory Auditors has checked that, in the Management 

Report and in the Notes to the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors 

has provided adequate disclosure of Related Party Transactions, taking 

account of applicable reporting requirements. 

6. Implementation of rules of corporate governance 

The Board of Statutory Auditors has assessed the methods of 

implementation of the Self-regulatory Code issued by the Italian Stock 

Exchange and adopted by Moncler on the basis described in the Report 

on Corporate Governance and Ownership Structures . 



The Board of Statutory Auditors has also verified proper application of the 

criteria and procedures adopted by the Board of Directors to evaluate and 

confirm the independence of its members. 

7. Supervision of compulsory audit of financial statements 

Pursuant to Article 19 of Legislative Decree no 39/2010, the Board of 

Statutory Auditors, identified in this article as the Internal Control and 

Audit Committee , has performed supervisory activities on the work of the 

Independent Auditors. 

The Board of Statutory Auditors met on several occasions with 

Independent Auditor KPMG S.p.A., also in terms of Article 150 of the 

T.U.F., in order to exchange information regarding the Independent 

Auditor s work. During these meetings, the Independent Auditor never 

raised any matters deemed necessary to report in terms of Article 155, 

paragraph 2, of the T.U.F. 

On 29 March 2017, pursuant to Articles 14 and 16 of Legislative Decree 

no 39/210, the Independent Auditor issued its reports confirming that the 

financial statements and the consolidated financial statements as at 31 

December 2016 were prepared clearly and presented a true and fair view 

of the financial position, result of operations and cash flows of Moncler 

and the Group for the year then ended. Furthermore, in the opinion of the 

Independent Auditors, the Management Report which accompanies the 

financial Statements and the consolidated financial statements at 31 

December 2016, and the information referred to in paragraph 1, letter c), 

d), f), l), m) and paragraph 2, letter b), of Article 123-bis of the TUF, as 

presented in the Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership 

Structures , are consistent with the financial statements and the 

consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2016. 

On 29 March 2017, the Independent Auditors also presented the Board of 



Statutory Auditors with their report in terms of Article 19 of the Legislative 

Decree no 39/2010, which did not raise any significant weaknesses of the 

internal control system in relation to the financial reporting process.  

The Independent Auditors have submitted to the Board of Statutory 

Auditors a Report on auditor independence, as required by Article 17 of 

Legislative Decree no 39/2010.  Said report does not highlight any matters 

that could compromise auditor independence or constitute a compatibility 

issue in terms of said decree. 

The Independent Auditor, together with other firms belonging to its 

network, has received the following fees: 

• Euro 120,111  audit services provided by KPMG S.p.A. to 

Moncler S.p.A.; 

• Euro 205,619  audit services provided by KPMG S.p.A. to 

subsidiaries Industries S.p.A., Moncler Enfant S.r.l. and Moncler 

Lunettes S.r.l.; 

• Euro 179,690  audit services provided by the KPMG S.p.A. 

network to foreign subsidiaries Moncler Japan Corporation, 

Moncler Shanghai Commercial Co. Ltd, Moncler France S.à.r.l., 

Moncler Asia Pacific Ltd.; Moncler Shinsegae Inc., Moncler UK 

Ltd.; 

• Euro 22,750  certification services provided by KPMG S.p.A. to 

Moncler S.p.A.; 

• Euro 2,590  certification services provided by KPMG S.p.A. to 

Italian subsidiaries Industries S.p.A. and Moncler Enfant S.r.l.; 

• Euro 4,527  certification services provided by the KPMG S.p.A. 

network to foreign subsidiaries; 

• Euro 63,587  other services provided by KPMG S.p.A. to Moncler 

S.p.A.; 

• Euro 89,508  other services provided by the KPMG S.p.A. 



network to subsidiary Industries S.p.A.. 

 

Taking account of the engagements given by Moncler and other Group 

companies to it and other firms in its network, the Board of Statutory 

Auditors does not believe there are any issues in relation to the 

independence of auditor KPMG S.p.A. 

8. Omissions or censurable matters, opinions given and initiatives 
undertaken  

During the year, we did not receive any reports in terms of Article 2408 of 

the Italian Civil Code or reports of irregularities. 

During the year, the Board of Statutory Auditors did not issue any opinions 

or make specific observations under legal requirements.  

During the work done and based on the information obtained, we did not 

identify any omissions, censurable matters, irregularities or other 

significant issues in need of reporting to the Regulatory Authority or 

mention in this Report. 

9. Remuneration policies 

The Board of Statutory Auditors has reviewed the business processes that 

lead to the establishment of the Company s remuneration policies with 

particular reference to the remuneration and incentives of persons in 

charge of Control functions and the Manager in charge of preparing the 

Company s financial reports. 

The Board of Statutory Auditors has attended all meetings of the 

Appointments and Remuneration Committee which has prepared 

remuneration plans in accordance with the proposals made by the Board 

of Directors. 

10. Conclusion 

Taking account of the specific duties of the Independent Auditors in terms 



of accounting control and testing the reliability of the financial statements, 

the Board of Statutory Auditors has no comments to make to the 

Shareholders  General Meeting in terms of Article 153 of the T.U.F., in 

relation to approval of the financial statements for the year ended 31 

December 2016 as accompanied by the Management Report as presented 

by the Board of Directors and the Board of Directors  proposal for the 

allocation of net profit for the year and for the distribution of dividends. 

 

The three-year appointment of the Board of Statutory Auditors ends upon 

approval of the financial statements. We thank you for your confidence 

and trust in us. 

 

 

Milan, 29 March 2017 

 

THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS 

Mario Valenti 

Antonella Suffriti 

Raoul F. Vitulo 
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